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GLOSSARY
A B

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms used under BXEZSBFIEN > TIHRRIER « TETH
Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion 4 - EEENHBE DT EBEFE L 2E
and Analysis, Biographical Details of Directors, Corporate Governance A R4 - B E € M4 & T F 0 % 8 E F7
Report, Report of the Directors and Five-Year Financial Summary shall A& EEFUTHAEHEN S E RS °

have the respective meanings set out below.

“2018 AGM”

[—TZ2-\FRRAEFAE]

“2019 AGM”

[—TE-NEFRRBEFAE

“2020 AGM”

[—E-TEREBEAE)

“AGM(s)’
[RRBEF K]

“Annual Report”
[ % ]

“Articles of Association”

(A EZAA

“associate(s)”

B8 A

“Audit Committee”

[ERZER)

“Board”

[EEg]

“CEQ” or “Chief Executive

Officer”
[T B 42 £

“CFQ” or “Chief Financial

Officer”
(BEMBE]

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2020

AGM held on Thursday, 25 October 2018
RZE-NF+AZ+HEB(EHMN BTHREBEFRE

AGM held on Friday, 18 October 2019
RZE-NFTATNBERLRTRRBEFAE

AGM to be held on Friday, 16 October 2020
BRZEZTFTATAB(EHR)BTHRRBFRE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRIERBEFRE

annual report of the Company for the Year

RRNRAFEFERE

articles of association of the Company as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

ARBZABERAR (BB EHRNATTELE)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
EALMRAETORE

audit committee of the Board

ExgE%%8e

board of Directors

Exwg

chief executive officer of the Company
RNRR ZITHEE

chief financial officer of the Company

ARARZEARMBE



“CG Code”
MR EA T Al

“Chairman”

A

“China” or “PRC”

[ E

“close associate(s)’
[EEBEAL]

“Company”

RN

“Company Secretary” or
“Secretary”
[RAFE ][]

“connected person(s)”

[EEAL

“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ R AR

“COVID-19”
[COVID-19]

“Director(s)”

==

“EGM(s)”
[ARERFFRIRE ]

“ESG”
[RE - HERER

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)

a8 & ()

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
TR AR 8% + M ET L 2 1 3 E VR ST Al

chairman of the Board

EFeIR

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of the Annual Report,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
REARKNME  iAFRMNE TEEEE RAISHNTRERAE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB LR AR T R R R E

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued Shares of
which are listed and traded on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
1470)

E-HBEERERAAF —HRAESESTMA Iz ERRBERAF
HE#TRONBERZAER B KRS (RHHK5E : 1470)

company secretary of the Company
NN /NI /=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BA FmRAAE T & RE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB LmRAMETRE

the novel coronavirus disease 2019
2019 F ¥ AR AR B & R

director(s) of the Company

RRARESF

extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

RRARBEREFRKRE

environmental, social and governance
R HEREAR

EBERERARAE
SECREER



GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)

A 5 (48)

“Executive Director(s)” or “ED(s)”

[ITEE]

“Fan, Chan”

et

“Financial Statements”

87 7% 5

“Group”
[REHE ]

“HKFRS(s)”

(BB W@ E 2R

"HKS’
b

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Independent Auditors”

[ 18 <7 7% ZAm |
“Independent Non-executive
Director(s)” or “INED(s)”
(B IFRTEE]

“Listing Rules”
[ LR Al
“Model Code”
M2 Z2E=r Al

“Nomination Committee”

REZER)

“Prosper One”

B

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2020

executive Director(s)
WITES
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, the Independent Auditor

EREGHEITERAR BB

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEBEARFEZHZEAVBHRE

the Company and its subsidiaries
RARREMKBRA

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

BEGFMRAGHRM BB HRE LR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBEAEEX

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
T B E B R BT R

independent auditors of the Company

ZN/NSIP v 3 4T
independent non-executive Director(s)”
BIUFHITES

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
Bt PR 5 E R A (B NRHEET B R B ITELE)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EFHRAMESE TSR EMBTAZESETELARINEESFL

nomination committee of the Board

E=gR%%BE

Prosper One Enterprises Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company
EEARRAA ARAH—BIERERE



“Register of Members”

[RER 4 it

“Remuneration Committee’

(&S

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR®]

“SFO"

(%8 % R IR 1561

“Share(s)”

[t ]
“Shareholder(s)”
g5 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 7 |

“subsidiary(ies)”
Iy =ENGIE

“Year”

[REE]

“Year 2019”
(=T NEFE]

“%"
(%] B DL

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)

7 = (1)

register of members of the Company

AR AR A M

remuneration committee of the Board

EFevMEEe

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR pEEEEE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEREVNESNEZHF LRATERMN (B IREET  EHSBITELE)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RATRRAFEREECOIE T2 ERR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
B FEH A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARZMER LA

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LR AR TR R E

year ended 30 April 2020
HE-_Z-ZTFNA=1THILFE

year ended 30 April 2019
BHE_Z-NFHA=1THILFE

per cent. or percentage
B

EBERERARAR
SECREER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANGIE=:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Guoqing (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung
Mr. Wang Luping

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Chun Keung

Mr. Wang Luping
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman)

Mr. Meng Guangyin

Mr. Wang Luping
Nomination Committee

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman)
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Sir Kwok Siu Man KR, Fcis, Fcs

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

NEEF ()

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Guoging
Sir Kwok Siu Man KR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Level 43, AIA Tower

183 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

(Change of address with effect from 8 May 2020)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

REAX

ZIEE KL
FRXREANFELHE

B B

SEREEETERAA

FEEREIT

RERTT(FE)ERAT
ERRT(EB)BARAA
BARITERAR
BELBESRITERAR

HMBRERETELER L

BB

A

ERE 1835

R HE%54318

(i BHE —_FT-_FTFAANEREN

A SR

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

EBERERARAR
SECREER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A B &R ()

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.prosperoneintl.com

LISTING INFORMATION

Place of Listing:

Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Stock Code
1470

Board Lot
4,000 Shares

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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ErmER
i

Bk 32 B £ 4R

B% 4 1K 5%
1470
BFEEEN

4,000 A%



To Our Shareholders,
EMA R R

On behalf of the Board of Prosper One International
Holdings Company Limited, | hereby present the annual
report of the Company for the Year.

RARBUERARE-EBERERERAFAEEZIRE
REAMNAFEZFH-

MENG GUANG YIN & E R
Chairman =&

=

B R A PR A ]
—E-REEH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

ERFRE (@

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Year was undoubtedly the most difficult time ever for the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong. The social unrest since late June 2019 had
taken a heavy toll on watches retail business, which led to a substantial
decrease in revenue of the Group from inbound visitors. During the anti-
government protests, our retail shops had to be temporarily shut down or
shorten their business hours for safety concerns, further adversely
affecting the performance of this segment. In addition, the trade tensions
between China and the United States have brought a negative impact to
the global economic environment and thus the consumption sentiment.
More unfortunately, the outbreak of the COVID-19 since late January
2020 has brought inbound tourism to a standstill and seriously weakened
the consumer sentiment because of the implementation of travel
restrictions and anti-epidemic measures by various countries. Given the
unprecedented challenges, the Group’s financial performance was
severely affected.

In this tough business environment, the Group has imposed a series of
cost saving measures, including employees’ no pay leave arrangements,
a salary reduction scheme for management, a job cut and the
minimization of operating costs. Due to the weak business demand, the
Group also scaled down its retail network by closing under-performed
shops in order to enhance our cost effectiveness. Meanwhile, the Group
had proactively negotiated with landlords for a temporary rental reduction
and most of them have agreed to grant it. On the other hand, the
Group’s trading of fertilizers and other products business in the PRC
continued to record profits, which slightly offset the downtrend impact of
the watches retail business. As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net
loss for the Year increased by approximately HK$32.1 million to
approximately HK$59.0 million, as compared to a net loss of
approximately HK$26.9 million for the Year 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the Year, our Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$94.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$108.1 million from
approximately HK$202.3 million as compared to previous financial year.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately HK$32.1 million or 119.3% from approximately HK$26.9
million for the Year 2019 to approximately HK$59.0 million for the Year.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.

PROSPECTS

The spread of the COVID-19 since the beginning of 2020 has resulted in
a slowdown of economic activities of PRC and the freight restrictions for
one and a half months or so. As the freight has been gradually returning
to normal since early March 2020, the impact of the COVID-19 for our
trading businesses is softened. Looking forward, as the domestic
supervision on safety and environmental protection will continue to be
strengthened in the PRC, the demand for fertilizers in industrial usages is
likely to see a slight decline. Under the background of the elimination of
backward production capacity, the integration and upgrading in the
fertilizers industry in the PRC will be intensified and the over-capacity
situation will be further alleviated. It is expected that supply and demand
of urea will remain basically balanced and the price will slightly fluctuate.
The Group will strive to maintain stringent product quality and
continuously improve our services to meet the customers’ needs so as to
further expand our business into this huge market.

As regards the watches retail business, the hardship is expected to
persist for some time. It is expected that the business environment for
retail sales will remain very difficult amid the economic recession, austere
labour market conditions as well as the outbreak of COVID-19. As the
rental expenses still comprise a major part of the Group’s operating
expenses, we shall continue to negotiate with landlords for further rental
relief. We have also reviewed our retail network and shall determinedly
close underperforming shops. The Group will conduct more stringent
cost reduction as and when required in order to get through the tough
times. Meanwhile, the Group will focus on clearing slow-moving
inventories so as to improve its financial conditions. Through these
initiatives, we hope that the Group will overcome difficulties and maintain
its strategic operations.

TR ®E (&)

ARREBEARBGNBER-_Z—NLFE
K #2698 88 i MA3218 B8 Tk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EREHmE (&)

Although the road to recovery from our watches retail business is full of
challenges, it is believed that all of our management and staff wil
continue working cohesively and making concerted efforts to get through
the hard times together. As usual, the Group will strive to diversify our
customer base by promoting product diversification and enhancing its
brand awareness, aiming to improve customers’ loyalty as well.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the Board members, management and
employees for their dedication and wholehearted contributions that
enable the Group to face the unprecedented challenges during the tough
time. Last but not least, | wish to express my sincere thanks to our
Shareholders, suppliers, customers and other business partners for their
ongoing trust and support.

Meng Guangyin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 July 2020

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was approximately HK$94.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$108.1 million or 53.4%
from approximately HK$202.3 million for the Year 2019. Revenue derived
from trading business increased by approximately HK$0.8 million or 3.5%
from approximately HK$23.0 million for the Year 2019 to approximately
HK$23.8 million for the Year. Revenue derived from watches business
decreased by approximately HK$108.9 million or 60.7% from
approximately HK$179.3 milion for the Year 2019 to approximately
HK$70.4 million for the Year. The decrease in revenue derived from
watches business was partly due to a sharp decline in inbound visitors as
a result of local social unrest and partly due to the standstill of inbound
tourism since the outbreak of the COVID-19. In addition, the consumption
sentiment was weakened by the outbreak of the COVID-19 and the trade
tensions between China and the United States, which adversely affected
the performance of this segment.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of cost of inventories sold and
provision for slow-moving inventories or reversal of provision. Our cost of
sales decreased by approximately HK$62.9 milion or 55.8% from
approximately HK$112.7 milion for the Year 2019 to approximately
HK$49.8 million for the Year. During the Year, the Group recorded a
provision for slow-moving inventories of approximately HK$5.1 million (2019:
reversal of provision of approximately HK$6.0 million) to profit or loss. The
provision for slow-moving inventories as at 30 April 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$22.9 milion (as at 30 April 2019: approximately
HK$17.8 million).

After eliminating the effect of reversal of provision or provision for slow-
moving inventories, cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$74.0
million or 62.3% from approximately HK$118.7 million for the Year 2019
to approximately HK$44.7 million for the Year. The decrease was mainly
due to the decline in sales of watches and in line with the decrease in
revenue of the watches retail business for the Year.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The overall gross profit decreased by approximately HK$45.2 million or
50.4% from approximately HK$89.6 million for the Year 2019 to
approximately HK$44.4 milion for the Year. Our gross profit of the
watches business decreased by approximately HK$46.0 million or 69.1%
from approximately HK$66.6 million for the Year 2019 to approximately
HK$20.6 million for the Year. Our gross profit margin of the watches
business decreased from approximately 37.1% for the Year 2019 to
approximately 29.3% for the Year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the provision for slow-moving inventories for the Year whereas the
higher gross profit margin for the Year 2019 was owing to reversal of
provision for slow-moving inventories.

After eliminating the effect of reversal of provision or provision for slow-
moving inventories, the gross profit margin of the watches business
increased from approximately 33.8% for the Year 2019 to approximately
36.5% for the Year.

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs decreased by approximately HK$5.8
million or 7.2% from approximately HK$80.5 million for the Year 2019 to
approximately HK$74.7 million for the Year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the decreases of lease expenses of retail outlets (including
rental expenses and depreciation of right-of-use assets), sales staff’s
salaries and allowances, bank charges, advertising and promotions,
repairs and maintenance, provision for onerous operating leases
recognised and impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
recognised. This decrease was partially offset by the increases in
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and impairment loss on
right-of-use assets. The decrease in lease expenses of retail outlets was
mainly related to lower rental rates negotiated on our lease renewals and
the decrease in the number of retails outlets.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$5.2 million
or 16.0% from approximately HK$32.5 milion for the Year 2019 to
approximately HK$27.3 million for the Year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the decreases in consulting fee, legal and professional
expenses and write-off of prepayment and receivables, which was
partially offset by the increase in the lease expenses of staff quarter.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately HK$2.2 million from
approximately HK$0.1 million for the Year 2019 to approximately HK$2.3
million for the Year. The increase was primarily attributable to the interest
on lease liabilities of approximately HK$2.2 million resulting from the
adoption of new accounting policy HKFRS 16 Leases.

Loss before tax and loss attributable to owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our loss before income tax increased by
approximately HK$33.6 million or 148.7% from approximately HK$22.6
million for the Year 2019 to approximately HK$56.2 million for the Year.
The increased loss was mainly due to the substantial decrease in revenue
of the Group from its watches retail business and the impairment loss on
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$18.4 million recognized because
of weak sales performance.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately HK$32.1 million or 119.3% from approximately HK$26.9
million for the Year 2019 to approximately HK$59.0 million for the Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s primary source of funds were cash inflows from operating
activities, bank borrowings and loans from the ultimate holding company.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$22.2 milion (as at 30 April 2019: approximately
HK$22.5 million), most of which were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi.
The current ratio (calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities) of the Group decreased from approximately 1.3 times as at 30
April 2019 to approximately 1.0 time as at 30 April 2020. The gearing
ratio (calculated by dividing net debt by total equity) was 19.4% as at 30
April 2020 (as at 30 April 2019: not applicable). Net debt was calculated
as bank loans and amount due to ultimate holding company less cash
and cash equivalents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

K 7 A (&)

EEE W

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
on 12 May 2015 (the “Listing Date” and the “Net Proceeds”,
respectively) (after deducting the underwriting fees and related expenses)
amounted to approximately HK$107.5 million, which have been intended
to be applied in the manner as disclosed in the prospectus of the

Company dated 28 April 2015.

tHREBEREFENAR

R-_ZE—RAFEFRA+-_BU(LHAH)E
TZBRORB X M SR EFE (R
BREZFHE) (RNKEHEER REBRX
B B1075E BB HFIEAQF B H
AB-E—AFNA -+ N NBZHRBRERR
WEZHNER-

During the period from the Listing Date to 30 April 2020, the Grouphas R It T HEBZEZ - €1 A=+ H I+
applied the Net Proceeds as follows: HME AEEE HT; 8RB FHEAIENAT
A :
Amount Amount Amount Expected
utilised utilised unutilised  timeline of full
during as at as at utilisation of the
the Year 30 April 2020 30 April 2020 balance
REEE RZIZB-FTF R-T-ZF HEEEH
e8fAz Mm™A=+AH mMA=+H BANEE
NE BHAZRE RBAZRRE W B &R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Expand our retail and sales BERIAMNEER Mid of 2021
network & A 48 3,124 36,764 849 —ZT-—F&EH
Improve our same-store sales HERMHREHE
growth and profit margin & &AEE — 12,896 - -
Improve our supplier network and 25 2 F {73 & it & 79 48
enhance the knowledge of our BKRIEEIHEHEET Mid of 2021
sales B S0 55 449 1,830 2,469 —T-—FFH
Increase our marketing effort mEmEEHENE Mid of 2021
155 7,382 141 —ZT-—FFF
Repay a short-term bank loan with {8 & 55 Hi9E 17 B Zu&
interest [& 1 & — 37,613 — —
Working capital and other general &8 & 4 & H b — & Mid of 2021
corporate purposes TER® - 6,940 582 —E_-—HFrh
Total 8=t 3,728 103,425 4,041

The unutilised Net Proceeds are placed as deposits with licensed banks

in Hong Kong.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies by the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 April 2020, the Group had a total of 96 (2019: 118) employees,
including Independent Non-executive Directors. The total remuneration
costs incurred by the Group for the Year were approximately HK$31.6
million (2019: approximately HK$35.4 million). We review the performance
of our employees annually and use the results of such review in our
annual salary review and promotion appraisal, in order to attract and
retain valuable employees. Remuneration packages are generally
structured by reference to market norms as well as individual
quallifications, relevant experience and performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Board to grant share options to eligible
participants with an opportunity to have a personnel stake in the
Company. As at the date of the Annual Report, there was no outstanding
share option granted under the Share Option Scheme.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$8.3 million as
at 30 April 2020 whereas the Group had no bank borrowings as at 30
April 2019.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings were denominated
in HK$ and secured and approximated to their fair values.

RAFE RARAEERMERKES L
EMBLE BEQRRREZERT -

BER&HMBR

%:?_?EEH +H - AXEHEEFS
HBZ(ZZE—NEFE:118R)EE(BHEB
iaE%{mi%) REFE AEBEEX
HEINR A EBEOAEEST(ZE—AN
F:HBL4EBEBT) KB FEEEES
MK UTREFUBEELERETTFEY
SR EEATIE URIILEBEEE SN
BE -FMESBBELEMEHRE  @AAE
- B RE A B R IR M & B o

ZNUVNETRSE S S (8. % i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

7 AT (1)

EEER WK

As at 30 April 2020, the Group did not have any foreign exchange
contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$24.0 milion (as at 30 April 2019: approximately
HK$24.0 million) for overdrafts and loans. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$15.7 million (as at 30 April
2019: approximately HK$24.0 million). The banking facilities were granted
to the subsidiaries of the Company and were subject to an annual review
and guaranteed by unlimited guarantees from certain of its subsidiaries
and a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group does not have a significant foreign exchange exposure and
has currently not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy. The
management will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plans for material investments and capital
assets as at 30 April 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

The Company did not hold any significant investment in equity interest in
any company other than its subsidiaries as at 30 April 2020.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments as at 30 April 2020 (as at 30
April 2019: Nil).

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

TEE WK D (@)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RAREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 April HRKEBER —_ZE_ZTFN_Z—ALFINA =
2020 and 2019. THEEEREARAREE-

FINAL DIVIDEND RHE IR B

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final BEZEEeEZ AN EZHAEERMNEMK
dividend for the Year (2019: Nil). HRB(ZE—NF:E\)-

E-BBRERERAF ’l 9
SEoBEER
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Meng Guangyin (ZE$E) (“Mr. Meng”), aged 54, was appointed as
our Executive Director on 7 September 2017 and as the Chairman on 28
September 2017. He has been re-designated as an Executive Director,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman on 1 April 2018. He is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Meng had been the chairman and the general manager of Ruixing
Group Company Limited* (35 2 & EHBR 2 ) since October 2003, and
has been re-designated as the chairman and the chief executive officer
since February 2013. He has more than 20 years of experience in
manufacturing of biochemical products for the agricultural industry. He
holds an associate degree in business administration from Shandong
Economics Management College* (LI 5874 £ & 38 % 30 220%) in the PRC.

Mr. Meng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu Guoging, an Executive Director.
In addition, he is the sole director of Prosper One which owns 75% of the
issued Shares.

Mr. Liu Guoqing (2IE &), aged 49, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017, as the Chief Financial Officer on 28
September 2017 and as a Co-chief Executive Officer on 18 October
2017; and was subsequently re-designated as an Executive Director and
the Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2018. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in corporate management from Beijing Business Management
College* (It RIE¥BEIRHMEER) in the PRC in July 2005. He joined
Ruixing Group Company Limited* (2 £EARHER 2] in August
2003 with his current position as the manager of finance department and
as a deputy general manager since January 2016. He has three years of
managerial experience in financial matters and nine years of managerial
experience in procurement and logistics operations in Ruixin Group
Company Limited.

Mr. Liu Guoqing is the brother-in-law of Mr. Meng, the Chairman, the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Mr. Liu Jiagiang (21/03&), aged 47, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017. He obtained an associate degree in
finance from Shandong Agricultural University* (L5 22 A 2) in January
2016. He has over 20 years of working experience, and spent seven
years thereof in a managerial role. He has worked in Ruixing Group
Company Limited* (i 2 &£ E i {7 AR 2 7)) since December 1995 and
has served as the general manager in the investment department and the
manager in the capital operations department since November 2016. He
is the deputy general manager of certain subsidiaries of the Company in
Shandong, the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (&) (“Mr. Tian”), aged 49, was appointed as our
INED on 20 September 2017. Mr. Tian is also the chairman of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Tian has over 20 years of working experience
in the fields of accounting and audit.

Mr. Tian joined ShineWing Certified Public Accountants Jinan Branch* ({2
KRG TR RIEPA(R R E B A B) BB D) in September 1994 and
has been the director of management consultancy department since July
2016, being responsible for the business development and technical
support of consultancy service projects.

Mr. Tian obtained a diploma in financial accounting from Beijing Jiaotong
University (AE75 22 AE2) (now known as 1L RA@AER) in July 1994.
Mr. Tian is a registered certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Luping (£ &) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 51, was appointed as
our INED on 27 December 2018. Mr. Wang is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang
completed his legal speciality studies at It IR =B AE (Beijing Jinggiao
University*) in 1990 and his undergraduate legal studies at China
University of Political Science and Law in 2005. He is a qualified lawyer in
the PRC and has worked as a legal professional for more than 25 years.
He has been a director of [IFREREMEMFT (Shandong Faya Law
Firm*) since 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ESERE (@)

Mr. Lee Chun Keung (Z485&) (“Mr. Lee”), aged 43, was appointed as
our INED on 14 December 2018. Mr. Lee is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering from Lehigh
University in Pennsylvania, United States in 1997, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Business Administration from the Open University of Hong
Kong in 2000, and a Certificate in Business (Accounting) from the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of the University of Hong Kong
in 2007. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is
currently the Vice Party Chairman of the Liberal Party in Hong Kong and
had been an elected member of the Eastern District Council from 2012 to
2019.

* The English transliterations of the Chinese name are for identification purpose only

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ value through
good corporate governance. The Directors recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures, internal control and
risk management procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles
as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has adopted and complied
with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report save for code
provisions A.1.1, A.2.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as disclosed in the
Annual Report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
govering the securities transactions by the Directors. Following a
specific enquiry made by the Company on each of the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

J/J:\%kk \A$ﬁ = (lnﬁ)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of the
Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures
that the requisite financial and human resources support is in place for
the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the
Board include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s business
plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major
capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring and
reviewing the Group’s corporate governance practices and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Articles of Association. The
Board has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference. The responsibilities of these Board committees
include monitoring the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensuring that appropriate internal control and risk management are
in place. The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to
management of the Group if and when considered appropriate. The
management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding and implementing the view that
the Board should include a balanced composition of Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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As at 30 April 2020, the Board comprised six Directors, of which the
INEDs in aggregate represented more than one-third of the Board
members. The composition of the Board during the Year is set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Meng Guangyin

Mr. Liu Guoging

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

INEDS

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan

Mr. Lee Chun Keung
Mr. Wang Luping

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of the Annual Report.

Mr. Meng Guangyin is the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu Guoging. Save as
disclosed, there was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board
committees, all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which was in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and that
at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence in writing
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation and not aware of the occurrence of any event that
would impair the independence of the INEDs, the Company considers
that all the INEDs are independent and have met the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Chairman, being an Executive Director, at least held
one meeting with the INEDs without the presence of other Executive
Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company provides each of the newly appointed Directors with a
formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and business and is fully aware of the Director’s
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company will from time
to time fund and arrange suitable training to all Directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their duties and
responsibilities, such that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expense and they have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, the continuing professional
development programmes received by each of the Directors during the
Year is summarised as follows:

WEEEEATA 2T RAEXFEAL5E
MEEER2HEFBEFZXRR ERALE

MEMBRRE UEREEEEAER
BEARNEMBZBERATHESTSFL
BR-ARAB IR RE2REFLFAE
B RHEAEALE ERYFFELER
AREEZAE R NELBEEEA
BEEERRIAMBZIBEATHESS
ELER - ARFTE B 2REE2MA
IR BEREARRAE  B28E
EEWERAARAIERGEEFIGCE R
BARRGFEZRIICE SEERAF
EARXZHEBEEXZRIAEMALT

Name of Director Type of training
Espgs 3% 31 8 B
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Meng Guangyin BEREE AandBandC ARKBRKC
Mr. Liu Guoaging BRI & AandBandC ANBRKC
Mr. Liu Jiagiang 2 hnag 5 & AandBandC ANBRC
INEDs BYFHTES

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan HEELEE AandBandC ARBREC
Mr. Lee Chun Keung THEBEE AandBandC AKRBRC
Mr. Wang Luping FEFEAE AandBandC AK&BRC
A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, in-house/external

seminars, briefings, conferences, forums and workshops

B: reading materials relating to the economy, general business, corporate
governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

C: reading newspapers and journals relating to the corporate governance matters,
environment and social issues or director’s duties and responsibilities

A Z2IEFIRTE - BIRE RN AED S
g BWmE g% WHELIES

B: BHHEAMALE KA CXEAURES
BEMEEZMH

C MEFHLXEREE REMHEMER
EERAMAEZHRERMT

E-BRERERAT
—B-BEER

27



28

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Code provision of A.1.1 of the CG Code provides the Board should
meets regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notice of at least 14 days will be
given to the Directors in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice
will be given in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are allowed
to include any matter in the agenda that is required for discussion and
resolution at the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed
on issues arising at each of the Board meetings and to make informed
decisions, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers will be sent
to all Directors at least three days before the intended date of the Board
meeting, or such other period as agreed. The Company Secretary is
responsible for keeping all Board meetings’ minutes. Draft and final
versions of the minutes will be circulated to the Directors for comments
and record respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting and
the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

During the Year, two regular full Board meetings have been held and the
Board has made resolutions by circulation of written resolutions for all the
Directors’ execution from time to time. In view of the simplicity of the
Group’s businesses, regular Board meetings have not been held about
quarterly during the Year. The Group’s audited consolidated annual
results for the Year 2019 and unaudited consolidated interim results for
the six months ended 31 October 2019 together with all corporate
transactions made during the Year have been reviewed and discussed
amongst the Directors at the full Board meetings held in the Year.
Together with the circulation of written materials to keep the Board
informed throughout the Year, sufficient measures had been taken to
ensure that there was efficient communication among the Directors,
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including the INEDs. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meeting for the Year, the 2019 AGM held on 18 October 2019 and the
EGM held on 29 November 2019 is set out below:

B-BREERAFEZEFTEERZ N _F
—AETATNARETZ-_Z-NAFRR
BEREMR_Z-—NAF+—-A=-+N1AH
BT ZBRFH KRG 2 HFCEFINMT -

Board EGM held on
Meeting(s) 2019 AGM 29 November 2019
R=ZFB—hF
+—A=thH
—E-hEF BITZRR
Exged RREBEFKE BEXE
Name of Directors Attended/eligible to attend
o= BHE SGERLEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Meng Guangyin HERLE 1/2 0/1 0/1
Mr. Liu Guoging 2B E L AE 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Liu Jiagiang 2 hnse 5t &= 2/2 1/1 1/1
INEDs BYkHITES
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan HEERLE 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lee Chun Keung FEECR A 2/2 0/1 0/1
Mr. Wang Luping TEFLEE 2/2 1/1 0/1

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has a Board diversity policy (‘Board Diversity Policy”)
which recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board nominations, appointments and re-
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board members and the nomination
policy of the Company. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision of A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the Year and up to the date
of the Annual Report, Mr. Meng Guangyin acts as the Chairman and the
CEOQ. In the view of fact that Mr. Meng Guangyin has been operating and
managing the Company since 7 September 2017, the Board is of the
opinion that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Group to
have Mr. Meng Guangyin taking up both roles for effective management
and business development. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in
such circumstances. Nevertheless, the Company will look for suitable
candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant to the
requirement under A.2.1 of CG Code as and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Al
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and upon reasonable request, members of the Board
committees are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
code provision C3 of the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were revised on 1 January 2019 to conform with the
requirements under the CG Code and the Listing Rules. Such written
terms of reference are published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. It comprises all the three INEDs, namely
Mr. Lee Chun Keung, Mr. Wang Luping and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan who is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving
their remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any
questions regarding their resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;

° developing and implementing a policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where an
action or improvement is needed;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and financial statements and half-year report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

° oversighting the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

° discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
the management to ensure that the management has performed its
duty to have such effective systems;

° considering major investigation findings of internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

° where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;
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o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

o reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

° ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letters; and

o considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the Audit
Committee, amongst other matters, considered and approved (i) the draft
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 October 2019 for presentation to the Board for its
consideration and approval and (i) audit-related matters.

The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings during
the Year is as follows:

Name of Directors

e RIUASEBZUBEREFTHBERE
7

o RISINEREMAETEEREZ R
TEM gL MERE B
EpREEERhZEMERREA R
BEEFHZEE:

s HWEREBEFEHLKEENINERZBEE
RTEEBZRMHRREEZEE R

e MARHEMHEFTSREIRE-

ERZEERAFEETTMAGH M
ReZL FERZEe(EPREB)EER
HEAEEHE-_ZE-AF+A=+—H
EREAZRAEEZREAMBRERI R
NEXEFE@EZMAE  ROFZHEEE
o

BEBUNNTEERAFELREREZER
SERZREWT

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Eligible to Attend

HERE
cEREE
gEEng BRRE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) AErLE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Lee Chun Keung ES L e 2/2
Mr. Wang Luping ITEFRE 2/2

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that at
least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise
a minimum of three members and must be chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director) is an Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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The audited Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 31 July 2020. The Audit Committee is
of the opinion that such consolidated financial statements comply with
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules and that adequate
disclosures have been made. The chairman and the members of the
Audit Committee attended such meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Tian
Zhiyuan, Mr. Wang Luping and an Executive Director, Mr. Meng
Guangyin. Mr. Tian Zhiyuan is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-based
remuneration by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° either: (i) determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management; or (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
INEDs;

° considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;
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o reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the
Executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

. ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the S HMEE e ERNAEELEFMES
meetings of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is as follows: BERINEAT

No. of Attendance/

No. of Meetings

Name of Director Eligible to Attend

HERE

EERERE

EEHE BERHE

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) BEREE (X E) 11

Mr. Meng Guangyin HEREE 1/1

Mr. Wang Luping FEFEAE 11

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting; and #HEEZEe XN AREERIT T — Rz R

among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and
senior management. The chairman and the members of the
Remuneration Committee attended such meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises two
INEDs, namely Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Lee Chun Keung, and an
Executive Director, Mr. Meng Guangyin. Mr. Meng Guangyin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the

Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at its
meetings during the Year is as follows:

Name of Director

REZESCTIZACRBEBRIEETR
A

EVBFERTEFTSZIRE  AER
MR (BREXE MBALERTE)
YERSEAARRR QAR
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s HREEZEREBURER(LER
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SEHEIRBWT

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Eligible to Attend

HERE
EEEHE
BENE EE PN
Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman) BEREE(FE) 1/1
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan HERLE 11
Mr. Lee Chun Keung 3 11

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting and
among other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs, recommended to the
Board for consideration the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the
2019 AGM and the nomination of Directors, with adequate consideration
of the Board Diversity Policy, for the appointment of new Directors. The
chairman and the members of the Nomination Committee attended such
meeting.
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NOMINATION POLICY REBE

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the EZLZE @SB E NWEFAREMRES
selection, appointment and re-appointment of a Director including an (BEB T IEHNITES)NTE - ZFELE

INED in accordance with the following procedures and process: EBrnEFeRHED:

i The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the i REZECSBERNEEEREES
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of AR NBERE  BLEHFE— Tﬁ} F)’T =
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus Keg BHEERBFE UEPDE
the search effort; T1{E:

i The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers i REZZEeNVENEIZESBEIREA
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as BrARARAEREBENTMEKR:  F
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations M EEEMHE BE EF=Z2AK
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders BARMHEERKE E‘] ZH UTEE
with due consideration given to the criteria which include but are Z2E(BEETER) THEHEZE
not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age, @ BSFTEMZEME HPaFEN
cultural and educational background, professional experience, B Fi XIERHBEHE H
skills, knowledge and length of service; BB FRRE M R RIS TR

()  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of (b) RN ESSRE E’J—H‘fﬁ
available time and relevant interest (details of the Board E’] Hq MEBEENS(EEe2 T
Diversity Policy set out above); (EBEZ2EFBHN £

(c) Qualifications, both academic and professional, including © EBMmMkIEEER BREFEARQ
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in AILRENB AR EBHMERBITE
which the business(es) of the Company and its subsidiaries B B AL RN 4R B

is/are involved;

(d)  Independence (for INEDs); o BLU(RBILERNITESM
EDE
(e)  Reputation for integrity; e HiEBE:
()  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the H EATURESSHRKNELER
Board; and 53
(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board. 0 REFGERFEMCHE TN
g -
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The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board'’s circle of contacts;

Promptly after considering a candidate’s suitability for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or
by way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of
the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a non-executive Director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation to the
Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board, who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate
and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed
with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include but are not limited to:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
directors of the Group; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of one year and each of the INEDs
has been appointed for a specific term. The extension of the terms or the
renewal of any such service agreements or letters of appointment, where
necessary, will be in compliance with the Listing Rules and any other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service agreement
or letter of appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other
than the agreements/letters of appointment expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
The Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who
wishes to retire and does not offer himself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment and so that as between the
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers had been the Independent Auditor since the
listing of the issued Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
12 May 2015. On 27 April 2017, PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as
the Independent Auditor. On the same date, the Board appointed Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to fill the casual vacancy as the
Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. Baker Tilly
was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM as the
Independent Auditor to hold office until the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.
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Baker Tilly resigned as the Independent Auditor on 18 April 2018. On 3
July 2018, the Board appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong (“Deloitte”) to fill the casual vacancy as
the Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

Deloitte resigned as the Independent Auditor on 14 December 2018. On
19 December 2018, the Board appointed Fan, Chan to fill the casual
vacancy as the Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the 2019
AGM. Fan, Chan was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the 2019 E
AGM as the Independent Auditor to hold office until the conclusion of the

2020 AGM.

Please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2015 and
the announcements of the Company dated 27 April 2017, 18 April, 3 July

and 19 December 2018 for further details.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

AND REMUNERATION

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Financial Statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of the Annual Report.

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Independent
Auditor in respect of the Year is set out below:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
Financial Statements.

The Directors were aware that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK59,005,000 for the Year and as of that date, had accumulated losses
of HK$124,213,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Group’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company (collectively “internal controls”).

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

For the Year, the Board has conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. Such review has been made by discussion with the Audit
Committee, management and the Independent Auditors from time to
time, but at least once a year. The Board will put in place to address the
identified area that will be enhanced. The Board considers that the
existing risk management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective.

The Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems, and has procedures in place to keep information confidential
and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal
structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside information
and avoid conflicts of interest.
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The Audit Committee has received the summarized information on the
risk management and internal controls conducted by the internal audit
team. The work carried in relation to the identified areas are summarized
as follows:

(i) the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

(i) a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

(iiy  an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the Year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed with the
management.

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is
fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls within
the Group to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group’s
assets, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the
systems in place are adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s website;

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

ERZBECREANNEZEBRET ZR
BREBRABEEHRER - FHRHEH
PEEETZ THEMEMT

) HEARXRANIEEREF BERMB
FE MR AEER

(i) AT FTER AN R R B IR R AR B A
Bz —RaE &

@iy FIHARNFERTED 2EMNEIEEE

ZREE(WA)

I E

EREZEGCEMME ERERw e

EESRARBENNERRE Y2 M
BRAKEEAETABERFHEZRE
MRERREASEEEZ MG AKE
PR hEEZAREERAREENEZ
BRI RERBEEHIEERED

REHEHRE

AEBEMBZERBEESLPEGRI R LS
RAMEETZEE BE2RAIRARBHE
SBRZLA DM RERBEMARTER Z
R RABESEEET

s AEREREEBEHERDEELDR
Az WBEREANBEEESFNBES
BERZEGN_T—_FAHEM
ZIABHEEWERES

s AKEEBMBHE AERARF
BMUEECERAAREZIIFBRIE
R NERERBEEE A TFHRERE



° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the
financial controller of the Company are authorised to communicate
with parties outside the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Sir Kwok Siu Man KR (“Sir Seaman Kwok”) is the Company Secretary.
Sir Seaman Kwok supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board
and that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Sir Seaman Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to be the Company Secretary on 28 September
2017 and since then, Boardroom has been providing certain corporate
secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary person
at the Company with whom Sir Seaman Kwok contacted during the Year
was Ms. Mancy Wai, the financial manager of the Company, in respect of
the company secretarial matters.

Sir Seaman Kwok delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant
continuous professional development training during the Year pursuant to
rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a
key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its announcements,
circulars as well as annual and interim reports. The corporate website of
the Company has provided an effective communication platform to the
public and the Shareholders.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the Year, the Company has not made any change to its
constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the Company’s
constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a Shareholder’s communication policy with
an objective to provide our Shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as Shareholders in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.
The Company would review the Shareholders’ communication policy on
a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
Shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include AGM, EGM, annual report, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for demanding a poll will be included in circulars
accompanying. The notice convening a general meeting and such
procedure will be read out by the chairman of the general meeting or his
delegate. The AGMs and other general meetings of the Company are
primary forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The members of the Board, Board committees and the
Independent Auditors are present to answer Shareholders’ questions at
the AGMs. The Company will provide Shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a channel to promote
effective  communication, the Group maintains a website where
information on the Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors may write
directly to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong
with any inquiries.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company will
invite/has invited representatives of the Independent Auditors to attend
the 2020 AGM and the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee to attend the
forthcoming 2020 AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions regarding the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the independent
auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditors’ independence.

Mr. Meng Guangyin, the Chairman, did not attend the Company’s 2019
AGM due to other essential business engagements. In order to ensure an
effective communication with the Shareholders, the Directors attending
the 2019 AGM elected Mr. Liu Guoging, an executive Director, to chair
the meeting on behalf of the Chairman. The respective chairmen and/or
members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee and a representative of the Independent Auditors
were present at the 2019 AGM to answer relevant questions from the
Shareholders. To mitigate the above, future AGMs will be scheduled
earlier to avoid the timetable clashes.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or move
resolutions at the AGMs under the Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM”
set out below.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EGM

Written requisition of any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board or the Company
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the basic
principles in determining the distribution of the dividends to the
Shareholders (the “Dividend Policy”).

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

()  the financial results and financial condition of the Group;
(i) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;
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(iv)  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group; and

(v}  the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Law of the Cayman lIslands, the Articles of
Association and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time and reserve the
right at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, and/or modify
the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
specific period.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules,
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure that information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling the Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and Shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue to use its reasonable endeavours in
maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance
level and quality.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESERE

The Directors present to the Shareholders their report for the Year and
the Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the retail and wholesale of
watches in Hong Kong, and (i) the acting as a sales and trading agent of
fertilisers raw materials and related fertiliser products.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 188 of the Annual Report.
The summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

FAIR REVIEW OF BUSINESS

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year and the likely future development in
the Group’s business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of the Annual Report.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the “Five-Year Financial
Summary” of the Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, which may
materially adversely affect its business, financial conditions or results of
operations. As some of the projects are located in the PRC, the political,
economic and legal developments and changes to government policies
in the PRC may have a significant impact on the Group.
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The financial risks of the Group included currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. These financial risks are elaborated in Note
35b to the Financial Statements of the Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. As far as the
Company is aware, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the places where it operates in all material respects during
the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers,
Shareholders and other stakeholders. During the Year, there was no
material or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders.

Employees

The Group recognizes that employees are the valuable assets for the
Group’s continuous development. The Group has complied with the
applicable labour laws and regulations by regularly reviewing the
remuneration package of the Group’s employees by reference to market
standard, and conform to the performance, qualifications and experience
of the employees.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing good quality service to its
customers and enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the
interaction with customers through social media platforms, which provide
a good foundation to our Group’s overall performance in the long run.

Suppliers

The Group has maintained good relationships with its suppliers. The
Group cooperates with suppliers that are committed to quality of
products.

AEBEzYBRAREBREEERAR M XE
BoEERBREABESER ZEMER
A AN F 3R B TS 3R I S350 A -

BFERRER

AEEEREAHAAEREEBRR M
FriieREEEREEEERBEESR
AEBMERIBTREEREIEREER
EZEE - BARARMA RAFEARE
EAFHRZAY AEEERMEEKRT
T2 EMRE Z — YIRBED FOER -

HXBMEHBEATZBE

AEBEREEBXDERRER TP #HE
BoBRREXTENEHBALREMN SR
MREALTZIF RAFEAR NEEEHE
R TP/ REMFREEALTLE
BEFEARFHE -

==

AEBERAREDAEERBEERNE
BEEE-ASEEER2BRMERELE
BzR\R BEMERTHRIASEE
BZHFMAES WEMETERS TEM R
B e

EF

AEERNREFPRHEEERS  WiEB
RHRKERFEMBETPEHEMIESS
EFRHBE RAKEREERIRBAET
ROFER -

HER

AEEERERET RIFBEER AREHE
OB ERERZHEREE-

E-BRERERAT
—B-BEER

49



50

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ESEHRE @

Shareholders and other stakeholders

The Group has made an ongoing dialogue with its investors and
Shareholders as provided in the “Investor Relations” and “Shareholders’
Communication” paragraphs of the Corporate Governance Report of the
Annual Report.

ESG

The Group continually reviews its ESG efforts, corporate governance and
risk management practices with the aim of creating and delivering
sustainable value to all key stakeholders. The Group has been exploring
more efficient opportunities to reduce the consumption of resources in
order to reduce its impact on the environment.

A separate ESG report is expected to be published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than three
months after the publication of the Annual Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 79
of the Annual Report. The Board does not recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the Year (2019: Nil).

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived or agreed
to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 28 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 82 of the Annual Report and Note 41 to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At as 30 April 2020, the Company had no distributable reserves (2019:
approximately HK$1.3 million). Details of the movements in the
distributable reserves during the Year are set out in Note 41 to the
Financial Statements.

AGM

A notice convening the 2020 AGM will be issued and dispatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the 2020 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 13
October 2020 to Friday, 16 October 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2020 AGM, the non-registered
Shareholders must lodge all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at Room
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 12 October 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 86.6% of the total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 45.8% of the total
purchases.

For the Year, the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 38.3% of the total sales and sales to the largest
customer accounted for approximately 17.2% of the total sales.

The largest supplier is a company owned as to 51% by Mr. Meng Xiao
who is a cousin of Mr. Meng Guangyin, the Chairman, an Executive
Director and the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and the
second largest supplier is ultimately controlled by Mr. Meng Guangyin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or
any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued Shares) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the
Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 26
to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Guoging
Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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Independence Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung
Mr. Wang Luping

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors will retire by rotation at each AGM. In addition, code provision
A.4.2 of the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
stipulates that each Director shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years.

Pursuant to article 84(2) of the Articles of Association, the Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the
number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who
have been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-elected or
appointed Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director
appointed by the Board pursuant to article 83(3) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Director or the number of
Directors who are to retire by the rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Meng
Guangyin and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan will retire from office as Directors by
rotation and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the 2020
AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and is not aware of any event undermining their independence. As
such, the Company notes that all the INEDs are independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary,
independent auditors and other officers shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or any or them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
any potential legal action against the Directors and senior management in
respect of potential legal actions that may be incurred in the course of
performing their duties.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 22 of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Meng Guangyin, Mr. Liu
Guoging and Mr. Liu Jiagiang has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of one year, which may be terminated by
not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

The service agreement of each of Mr. Meng Guangyin, Mr. Liu Guoging
and Mr. Liu Jiagiang entered into with the Company had commenced on
7 September 2017 for an initial term of one year, was renewed for one
year commencing on 7 September 2018 and was further renewed for
one year commencing on 7 September 2019.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2020 AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term of one year, but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office.

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan had entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing on 20 September
2017, which was renewed for one year commencing on 20 September
2018 and was further renewed for one year commencing on 20
September 2019. Mr. Lee Chun Keung and Mr. Wang Luping had
entered into letters of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
one year commencing on 14 and 27 December 2018, respectively, which
were renewed for one year commencing on 14 and 27 December 2019,
respectively. Their appointment letters may be terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the Financial Statements, respectively. The remuneration packages of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board as described on pages 33 and 34 of the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the Year are
set out in Note 37 to the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the
end of the Year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of
any significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end of the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 April 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, were as follows:
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Mr. Meng Guangyin (“Mr. Meng”) Interest in a controlled corporation (Note) 600,000,000 75%
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Notes :

1. The 600,000,000 Shares were held under certain trust units under the
Changjiang Absolute Return China Fund (the “Changjiang Fund”), in which Mr.
Meng, the Chairman, the CEO and an Executive Director, was beneficially
interested via his wholly-owned company Prosper One, and managed by
Changjiang Asset Management (HK) Ltd (the “Changjiang Asset”), Mr. Meng’s
asset and fund manager. Mr. Meng is the sole shareholder and the sole director
of Prosper One and is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares in
which Prosper One is interested under the SFO.
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2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April
2020.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 30
April 2020, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at 30 April 2020, the following
entity (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:
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Notes:

1. The 600,000,000 Shares were held under certain trust units under the
Changjiang Fund, in which Mr. Meng, the Chairman, the CEO and an Executive
Director, was beneficially interested via his wholly-owned company Prosper One,
and managed by Changjiang Asset, Mr. Meng’s asset and fund manager. Mr.
Meng is the sole shareholder and sole director of Prosper One and is deemed to
be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares in which Prosper One is interested

under the SFO.

2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April
2020.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2020, so far as the Directors or
chief executive of the Company are aware, no other persons (other than
a Director or the chief executive of the Company) or entities had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management
of the Company and their respective close associates that compete or
may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course
of business are provided under note 37 to the Financial Statements. Save
for the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, none of the
related party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In relation to those related party
transactions that also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, they have complied with
the applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Group for the Year (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) are as follows:

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
subject to reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements

Purchases of fertilisers from Shandong Runyin
Biological and Chemical Industry Company Limited*
L EEIR AV TIRH B R A F (“Shandong Runyin”)

On 23 September 2019, the Company and Ruixing Group Company
Limited* (“Ruixing”) entered into a purchase agreement to purchase
fertilisers from Ruixing and its subsidiaries (together, the “Ruixing
Group”). During the Year, the Group had purchased fertilisers such as
urea and compound fertilisers from Shandong Runyin, a subsidiary of
Ruixing, for resale to independent customers. The transaction values for
the purchases amounted to approximately HK$213.4 milion. As the
Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of these purchase
and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission income of
HK$9,185,000 for acting as agent in these transactions.

Shandong Runyin is ultimately controlled by Mr. Meng, the Chairman and
an Executive Director and the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company. Therefore, Shandong Runyin is an associate of Mr. Meng and
thus a connected person of the Company.
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The annual cap of the transaction value under the purchase agreement
shall not exceed HK$215 million, HK$248 million and HK$285 million for
each of the three years ending 30 April 2020, 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

Purchases of fertilisers from Shandong Nongyuan
Nongzi Company Limited* [UWREREZEARGR LT
(“Shandong Nongyuan”)

On 23 September 2019, the Company and Shandong Nongyuan entered
into a purchase agreement to purchase fertilisers from Shandong
Nongyuan and its subsidiaries. During the Year, the Group had
purchased fertilisers from Shandong Nongyuan for sale to independent
customers. The transaction values of the purchases amounted to
approximately HK$310.5 million. As the Group is considered to be acting
as agent in respect of these purchase and sale transactions, the Group
recognised commission income of HK$9,417,000 for acting as agent in
these transactions.

As Shandong Nongyuan is a company owned as to 51% by Mr. Meng
Xiao who is a cousin of Mr. Meng, Shandong Nongyuan is, therefore,
deemed to be a connected person of the Company.

The annual cap of the transaction value under the purchase agreement
shall not exceed HK$365 million, HK$419 million and HK$482 million for
each of the three years ending 30 April 2020, 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

Resale of crude glycerine to Shandong Fufu New
Material Technology Company Limited* (LR 18 E M ¥
BB R A A (“Shandong Fufu”)

On 23 September 2019, the Company and Ruixing entered into a supply
agreement to sell crude glycerine to the Ruixing Group. During the Year,
the Group had purchased crude glycerine from independent suppliers for
resale to Shandong Fufu, a subsidiary of Ruixing. The transaction value
for the sales amounted to approximately HK$4.0 million. As the Group is
considered to be acting as agent in respect of these purchase and sale
transactions, the Group recognised commission income of HK$1,039,000
for acting as agent in these transactions.

Shandong Fufu is ultimately controlled by Mr. Meng and is, therefore, an
associate of Mr. Meng and a connected person of the Company.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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The annual cap of the transaction value under the supply agreement shall
not exceed HK$9 million, HK$10 million and HK$11 million for each of
the three years ending 30 April 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively.

*  The English transliteration of the Chinese name is for identification purpose only.

Confirmations from the INEDs and the Independent
Auditor

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed
the Continuing Connected Transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been made:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)~ onnormal or better commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Independent Auditor was engaged to report on the Continuing
Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Independent Auditor
has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed above in
accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
Independent Auditor letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Independent Auditor has performed agreed-upon procedures
regarding the Continuing Connected Transactions as set out above and
states that:

(@  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the Continuing Connected Transactions have not been approved
by the Board;

(o)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;
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(c)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(d)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the Continuing Connected Transactions have exceeded the annual
caps as set by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its listed securities nor did the Company or
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
Shares in public hands) during the Year and thereafter up to the date of
the Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the service contracts of the Executive Directors)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders on 21 April
2015 (the “Adoption Date”).

1.

Purpose and Participants

The primary purpose of the Scheme is providing eligible participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and
to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants (the
“Participants”) whose contributions are important to the long-term
growth and profitability of the Group. Participants of the Scheme
include any employees, Executive Directors, non-executive
Directors (including INEDs), advisors, consultants of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding
options lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company) must not exceed 80,000,000, representing 10% of
the issued Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date and the
date of the Annual Report.

Acceptance of offer

Offer of a share option shall be deemed to have been accepted by
the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company within 28 days from the date of the offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board at its sole discretion and notified to
the Participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date on which a Share Option is granted,
and (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date on which a Share Option is
granted; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share.
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5. Maximum entitlement of Shares of each
Participant

(i) Subject to paragraphs (i) and (i) below, the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each Participant (except for the parties
mentioned in paragraph (i) below) (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue.

(i) Notwithstanding (i) above, any further grant of share options
to a Participant in excess of the 1% limit or the limit
mentioned in paragraph (i) below (as the case may be) shall
be subject to approval by our Shareholders in general
meeting with such Participant and his or her close associates (or
his associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. The number and the terms of the
share options to be granted to such Participant shall be fixed
before the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be taken as
the date for grant for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price.

(i) A substantial Shareholder or an INED, or any of their
respective associates can be granted options comprising the
underlying Shares (a) in aggregate not over 0.1% of the
issued Shares or (b) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant, not in
excess of HK$5 million.

6. Exercise of share options

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon which a
share option was granted, at any time during the option period after
the share option has been granted by the Board but in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. A share option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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7. Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further
share options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
in all other respects remain in full force and effect and share options
which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

On 4 January 2018, the Company offered to grant to certain Participants
options, which were subject to, among others, a refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit for the Scheme (the “Refreshment”). The
resolution concerning the Refreshment was duly passed by the
Shareholders at an EGM held on 25 January 2018.

As the offers of the grant of the share options had not been accepted by
the selected Participants in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Scheme, no share options were granted and outstanding as at 30
April 2020.

No share options were exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into other equity-linked agreements that (i)
would or might result in the Company issuing Shares or (i) would require
the Company to enter into any agreements that would or might result in
the Company issuing Shares during the Year and up to the date of the
Annual Report.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares of the Company.
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MATERIAL EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year set out in this Annual Report, the Group did not
have any other material subsequent event after the reporting period and
up to the date of the Annual Report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the draft Annual Report (including the
audited Financial Statements) and the draft annual results announcement
of the Company for the Year and had submitted the same to the Board
for approval. Members of the Audit Committee are of the opinion that the
Financial Statements, the results announcement and the Annual Report
have been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory provisions and that
an adequate disclosure has been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Fan, Chan, will retire as the Independent Auditor and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2020 AGM to re-appoint
Fan, Chan as the Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the next
AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON THE
WEBSITES

The Annual Report will be available for viewing on the website of the
Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the
Company at www.prosperoneintl.com in due course in the manner
required by the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board

Meng Guangyin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 July 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M 1% BLED R 5

S8R 2 6T A
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PROSPER ONE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosper One
International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 79
to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 April 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO THE
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 35b to the consolidated financial statements
which states that the Group incurred a net loss of HK59,005,000 for the
year ended 30 April 2020 and as of that date, had accumulated losses of
HK$124,213,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS FAEEEIE
BRREAFEHERBERMOBXHAE R
REARGEAMBHRROBAZA/EEN
FHE -ELFHEERMEFTEERAY
BHREAMDABERBETREN - LM
EHELFEHERHEBNER -

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

RREEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMmARESFTEEARESTEE

Valuation and impairment of inventories

FEGERBE

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

IR AR & B K M it 4 & 20

We identified valuation and impairment of inventories as a
key audit matter because the carrying amount of
inventories was significant and the assessment of
recoverability of the carrying amount involved significant

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories included:

HZMEHEREEBMETFEREMENEFREFEE

judgement and estimation uncertainty.

B EFERERRES sBREFEE RA
EFEFmEBEAN BHEAKBMTHY REX
H BT R e TE MR T

During the year, retail and wholesale of watches in Hong
Kong remained one of the main businesses of the Group
and was subject to changing consumer demands and
market conditions. The Group had inventories of gross
carrying amount of approximately HK$45,824,000 and
an allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$22,982,000 as at 30 April 2020.
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Understanding the Group’s key controls in relation to
the identification of slow-moving inventories and
measurement of the allowance for inventories;

B EEEEBFNFHEHTERGECEEEEESH
B B 4R 12 )

Understanding and evaluating the appropriateness of
the basis used by the management in estimating the
level of inventory allowance, taking into consideration
the inventory aging as at 30 April 2020 and subsequent
sales after 30 April 2020;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BERENSHE

FEREITEE@

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMuOARBFTEERRESFERE

In estimating the impairment of inventories, it is the
Group s policy to review the net realisable value of
inventories periodically with reference to aging analysis,
seasonality and current market conditions. These
assessments are subject to uncertainties arising from
changes in market trends, customer tastes and current
business environment.

ERAFERER ESENBREXRZ2EREKS
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Assessing and examining the assumptions and
estimates applied by management in determining the
allowance for slow-moving inventories including
discussing with the management for the assumptions
and judgement made in assessing net realisable values
and evaluating reasonableness of the management’s
assessment of saleability of inventories with reference to
historical record of the inventories;

AN EEEREEEECAHTERERMAERAZ
BE LG BEEEREENmET A 2F%E
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EREHFEZAHEBRAZHEREAIE

Assessing the historical accuracy of allowance for slow-
moving inventories to evaluate the appropriateness of
the basis made by the management in the current year;
and

AEEEERANFHTERBRET ER Mt
HERERAFEFELNEERREE &

Comparing the carrying amount of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to their net realisable value through review
of subsequent sales. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective inventories subsequent to the
year end date, we challenged management on the
assumptions and basis applied to estimate the net
realisable value of the inventories, corroborating the
explanations with aging, consumer demand and market
trends of the respective inventories, as appropriate.
AREREBEHENFEREEMEA SR FEE
THRLER EEFERFELE BRI MEEH
ER - RMAMEREGATFTEAERFERRKADN

SR RKE ARABEFENEREK HEEFTHKK
M5B RAEERME)ERARENEIREE
e
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

T v

EREITEE@

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNAREFATEERRETEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”)

W¥ BERRBEREAEEZE((RARZE]) BE

Refer to notes 4, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial Statements

IR B I IHRAM F4 - 1516

We identified impairment of ROU assets as a key audit
matter because the estimation of future operating
performance of the outlets involve exercise of significant
management judgement. As at 30 April 2020, the net
book value of the Group’s properties under ROU assets
before recognition of impairment loss for the year then
ended amounted to HK$19,219,000.
BAEEREEENRERI SBREFFE R
AR EEAREERAFTETHEEREEREH
R —_ZT_TFHA=TH BREBEZBALEF
EREEBERACHAEEERTHN BEEEMEZF
AR {8 £19,219,00078 7T °

Management has conducted an assessment of
impairment for the ROU assets of the Group to determine
whether the carrying amount of the assets is higher than
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the higher of the value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal.

EREDY SESEEERAEEEREETG

NETEEREESSRRNAKREESE - ATKRE S
BOEARCAEEEAFERLEEXNAMEPHR
BEET °

The value in use is calculated from cash flow projections
for the remaining lease periods using data from the
Group’s internal forecasts and as such relies upon
management assumptions, such as the estimates of
future performance, corporate expense allocation and the
discount rate.

EREENSENRERA &S ENIERE
FEMRIAEENHNBR S REED - ZERAMK
BEREEBENETRR WARKRKRBE MG BXR
OB ARBEIR K o
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Qur audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessments of the impairment of ROU assets and leasehold
improvements in retail stores included:
BMEREREMETEAREERSEENHEHENE
KERENENETRFEE

° assessing and challenging the Group’s impairment
assessment models. This included challenging
management’s identification of impairment indicators, as
well as considering whether the discounted cash flow
forecasts on a store-by-store basis supported the
carrying value of the relevant non-current assets. We
also considered whether the Group’s impairment
assessment indicated that a reversal of a past
impairment provision was required;

e FEEkEBER ESEANREFNGENX - UBEEEE
REBEHINREES AREEZREURRERN
ERBREXFHHEBERDEENREEE - &M
TEE BEEENRENHEAXRATEREDBE
W E R



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

FEREITEE@

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNAREFATEERRETEE

We also identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment used by the Group in its networks of
retail outlets for selling of watches in Hong Kong as a key
audit matter. These non-current assets for retail stores
mainly represent leasehold improvements and the
impairment assessment of these assets was a key audit
matter because of the significance of the carrying
amounts of the related assets as well as the exercise of
significant judgement of management involved in the
assessment of the recoverability of the assets. Such
judgement is mainly focused on estimating future store
performance of the retail outlets.

BMITEH EXEEREEHEBENTEEHER
FTRZzWE BMELIEREBORENGENRBRSE
AERE - TEENREIERDEETEREEDE
R EBRHEEEENREENEAMKERE
TSP RzEEE R WD e RT 8 8 KA E -
ZEBENRENER - HERETEE - BEHEH
MEFEEPREAZTEENRRIERHERE

The estimation of future operating performance of the
Group’s outlets is dependent on, amongst others, the
industry landscape, overall economic environment and
the competitors in local markets. Management assesses,
on a yearly basis, whether there are events indicating a
potential impairment of the non-current assets.
EEEMENRRSEXRROGEFIORN (KRB
BITERR BELKBRRELRAM TS HFH
F-OBFEREENMENERELBARAFRHEE
AEERERE M -

comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future revenue,
margins, staff costs and rental and other lease related
expenses, with the historical performance of these retail
stores, management’s forecasts and new operating
lease terms;
HERBEREFANTANKREZRAZE(R
BARKKA -FBH BIRAREERHEMEENR
HEREZETEENELRER BERENEAR
AT EHERFETHE

evaluating the discount rates adopted in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against those of other similar
retailers;
FR2RAEMBAUZERNERITFIGAERERE
FERIBIR R P E AR IR K

performing a sensitivity analysis of both discount rates
and cash flows and considering the resulting impact on
the impairment charge and whether there were any
indicators of management bias;
HETHRERBRERENHRESINTLERBEE
RAELENTERREFEERNERERREND
%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESTER

HAREFTEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMOARESFTEERARENSRE

Based on the assessments, management is of the view
that an impairment loss of HK$463,000 and
HK$18,383,000 should be recognised for property, plant
and equipment and ROU assets, respectively, for the
year.

ERzEdt EBEBRRAFEDE BRE
N & &R & E & D R R463,000% T &
18,383,000/ 7T #) 5 B &7 18 ©

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

considering the Group’s disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of impairment testing of
ROU assets and leasehold improvements in retail stores,
including the key assumptions and sensitivities to
changes in such assumptions, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
2ERTGFEUNER - ER EXEERNGEEH
BRERTEUTEENCAREEREENERE
WREARNKRE BEFTERIREBABRRED
B B M -

Hipfs 2

BERREFRYUHMERAR - HitEE
BRINERFHERANZHMES EFLERE
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HAREEE®



OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hi=E B @

REBRMEGEMBERENEATS
EMMBETRMEEMEES  EHBRE
TOERHEMEEETEEAMBRRAL
BMPEEHEETHTHEAOBAFEERK
EERXEULFFEERBERRANIBR -
ERRMASHTHIE NREMIZHE
MESFEERERRL RMNF2HSE
ZE2E-EEHE RFRBEEFMSRE -

%EE?%%M@%

BERAREFARERBEEASHMAEMN
2 &8 15 WS R R FECR AR
MEBEBERERBEEM P B ZHA MR
R AHEBBRESAMBRR ZHE
THEEHRKFRBERMER 2 EBRER
R FTH 2 NEBEHI AR -

ERBEAMBREEE EFAETM
ERERBEEE LN LEERERT
BEAKEEEANZEE  URERR
FEERGHER RISEEEE B
EEERAFLEE ARELRERY
BRFE -

REERREEE BESEZVBHREE
=
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

B E A F RS

LHEERAFBELEGHERZRE
HIEL&Ewm UREMESZETE
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HPERIEERE T & &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Rooms 1007-1012

10/F., K. Wah Centre

191 Java Road

North Point

Hong Kong

31 July 2020

Lam Wai Yan
Practising Certificate Number: PO6906

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
& REeREmEtEEREE

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

Year Ended Year Ended

30/4/2020 30/4/2019
BZE HZE
—E-SF —E-NF
A=+H mA=+H
LFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTERT FAET
Revenue Il g (5) 94,193 202,349
Cost of sales $HE A (49,816) (112,744)
Gross profit E 44,377 89,605
Other gains and losses itz R EsiE @) 3,764 1,913
Selling and distribution costs HE KD KA (74,702) (80,515)
Administrative expenses THRAX (27,292) (32,508)
Other expense HEfH X = (1,000)
Finance costs Bl & B AR @8) (2,326) (128)
Loss before tax BRELATE 1B ©) (56,179) (22,633)
Income tax expense Fris #if X (10) (2,826) (4,260)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of KRBER A
the Company FE1GFAEE (59,005) (26,893)
Other comprehensive expense HEft2mEMAX
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HiEapgtE o E 8
to profit or loss EHH
— Exchange differences arising from translation — — & /G N E TS AT E 4
of foreign operations BIE i =58 (781) (183)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FiN/NETE =N L
attributable to the owners of the Company FREEAXBE (59,786) (27,0406
Loss per share — basic and diluted BREE - EXREE
(HK cents per share) (FRRAE) (14) (7.38) (3.36)

E-BBRERERAF 79
SEoBEER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

F|NANC|AL POSITION
#r e B R AR R 3R

As at 30 April 2020 R-Z-_ZEFPPA=+H

30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—BCRF —E-NF
A=+H mA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET FHETT
Non-current assets EmENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE (15) 15,281 23,536
Right-of-use assets CREEE (16) 836 -
Rental deposits HEE® @1) 3,824 7,513
Deferred tax assets RERIBBEE (17) 404 142
Financial asset at fair value through BEAFEFAEGD
profit or loss TEEE (18) 3,917 3,856
Club membership (R =g (19) 4,000 4,000
28,262 39,047
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE (20) 22,842 35,283
Trade receivables, other receivables and FEWE 55078 - HAih
prepayments FE U 2k 18 N FE S A (21) 117,047 137,615
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 7 18 587 587
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEED (23) 22,170 22,483
162,646 195,968
Total assets BAE 190,908 235,015
Capital and reserves A% 2R M &
Share capital [i% 2 (28) 8,000 8,000
Reserves i 19,028 77,788
Total equity HARE 27,028 85,788

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e MR & (@)

As at 30 April 2020 MN-ZT-_ZTFWA=+H

30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
A=+H mA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B3t FERT FET

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Provision for other liabilities and charges HibaE R D EE (24) 465 2,068
Lease liabilities HEAE 27) 6,150 —
6,615 2,068

Current liabilities mEAaE

Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FIE (24) 109,231 137,808
Lease liabilities HEAE (27) 19,424 -
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE SRR A BRI (25) 19,070 8,620
Bank loans RITER (26) 8,332 —
Tax liabilities HIEAE 1,208 731
157,265 147,159
Total liabilities BEESE 163,880 149,227
Total equity and liabilities wiETREE 190,908 235,015

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 187 were approved ~ HE79FE187THE 2 ZEHR AW BBKRKER T
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2020 and —ZTHFt+t A=+ —HHEEZGHELEE

are signed on its behalf by: FE - WA TREES
Mr. Meng Guangyin Mr. Liu Guoqing
REREE 2IEEEE
Director Director
BFE BFE

E-BBRERERAF 8"
SEoBEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHAN(iI_ES IN EQUITY
GAERBD R

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z

BEMA=TEIFE

Share Share Capital ~ Statutory Translation Accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
RA  BROEE EARE ZERE EXRB R BR REAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TET TET TET
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Ket1)  (H#2)
Balance at 1 May 2018 ~ MZZT—)\F
TRA—AM&EH 8,000 118,368 24,094 - (17) (37,611) 112,834
Total comprehensive 2 MH B X A%
expense
Loss for the year FRNER - - - - - (26,893) (26,893)
Exchange differences BMEBMEBRES
arising on translation of K& X, =48
foreign operations - - — — (153) — (153)
Total comprehensive AR AE
expense — — — — (153) (26,893) (27,046)
Transfer to statutory BYR2ETHRE
reserve - - - 700 - (700) -
Balance at 30 April 2019 R =-Z—h%E
—tANES 8,000 118,368 24,094 700 (170) (65,204) 85,788
Impact on initial application &/t Ji& F & i B 1
of HKFRS 16 (note 2a) R & B £ 1657 &)
T & (Wit2a) - - - - - 1,026 1,026
Adjusted balance at RZE-NE
1 May 2019 TA—A/
mRBES 8,000 118,368 24,094 700 (170) (64,178) 86,814
Total comprehensive ~ 2 EB A%
expense
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (59,005) (59,005)
Exchange differences BMEBIEBFEE
arising on translation of ~ HY[E ¥ =4
foreign operations - - - - (781) - (781)

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

mar

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMNA=1+HILFE

i 5 B 3k (&)

Share Share Capital ~ Statutory Translation Accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
RA  BROHEE EARE ZERE EXRB R BR REAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET AT
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Ket1)  (W#2)
Total comprehensive 2EMZBE
expense - — — — (781) (59,005) (59,786)
Transfer of translation iR NG
reserve upon FERE L RE
deregistration of a
subsidiary — — — — 24 (24) -
Transfer to statutory BYEATHE
reserve - - - 1,006 — (1,006) —
Balance at 30 April 2020 R-Z-Ff
mA=+AMEe 8,000 118,368 24,094 1,706 (927) (124,213) 27,028
Note 1: lESE

The balance of capital reserve comprises the following:

On 28 June 2011, Mr. Lam Man Wah (“Mr. Lam”), one of the Previous Controlling
Shareholders of the Company as defined in note 1, acquired the non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary of the Company from an independent third party. The difference
between the fair value of the equity interests acquired and the consideration paid
amounting to HK$1,610,000 was credited to the capital reserve.

On 31 October 2014, Mr. Lam agreed to waive part of its lending to the Group. The
waived amount of HK$14,282,000 was recognised as deemed capital consideration
and credited to the capital reserve.

On 9 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued 5,833 and 94,166 of its shares to
Ms. Ma Lili and Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited, a company owned by the Previous
Controlling Shareholders, respectively, to acquire their respective shareholding interests
in the subsidiaries of the Company.

As a result, a balance of HK$3,902,000 was credited to the capital reserve representing
the difference between the carrying value of the non-controlling interest of Jenus Top
International Limited acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof. The combined share capital of the other
subsidiaries of the Company of HK$4,300,000 was reclassified to capital reserve upon
the completion of the group reorganisation.

EAREERBEATSE:

R-ZE——EXA-+=B MXEEE(([HE
£ AW ATEARARAIEP — AR E)
M—EBBIE=FWREARG —BHEBRQRZEE
iR TN EREEENREZ AN AT EESE
1,610,000 7T B 5t A B A ©

RZZE—NE+A=+—B MELREREER
ANEE G 2 3o B o BE % FIE 14,282,000 7T
EHRERABEARBLE T AERGFEE -

RZFE—RAFMANA ARA DRI RETH
5,833 % 194,166 & I 15 T H # Kl 2 = RmE R &%
BRERAR(—HEHAERRRES 2 QR - LK
BREESERARAIKMBE AR ZREE -

A - 51 A E A 2 45 £2:8,902,0007% TT 18 AT Uk BB
ZHEBBRERAAEERESFEEEREAAA
ARBMBETZBRAEBEZ ZF KR HE BB
A7) 2 [ 48 % 7K 4,300,000 7T 7 & B 5 48 55 A 14 1
EFOPEEARNERE .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

"‘/-I—\/\*Eﬁ%nﬁib i'% (n\ﬁ)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE— FEP A=+ HIEEE

Note 2:

As stipulated by the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up capital by
issuing additional capital to the owners in proportion to the owners’ existing equity
holdings, provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 &

—EFOA=FTHLEER

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
Eﬁ £ HE
—E-Z2F Z—ZZT-NF
mA= + H WA=+H
LtEE IEFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Operating activities e EE)
Loss before tax 23 fR Ail &5 18 (56,179) (22,633)
Adjustments for: AT ZEERAE
Finance costs b & A A 2,326 128
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BELEREBITE 8,020 4,522
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREESENE 23,936 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and BHERYE BERRHE
equipment recognised BB & 1B 463 4,404
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EERECAEEERE
recognised &5 18 18,383 -
Loss on write-off of property, plant and WHEME  BMEREBEZ
equipment &5 18 = 382
Loss/(net gain) on disposal of property, HEME BMERREZ
plant and equipment B8 CF U ) 3 (2,099)
Interest income F B YA (67) (33)
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value EAFEFAEEN S
through profit or loss MEBEZ AFENRE (61) (69)
Allowance for write-down of inventories BERER/(BE)MRTE
recognised/(reversed) 5 5,114 (5,968)
Provision for reinstatement costs recognised BEREBER R EE 33 408
Provision for onerous operating leases EHREELLEHE
recognised B = 4,561
Write-off of prepayment and receivables 8 2 FEAS FRIE K
& W SRR = 2,731
Operating cash flows before movements in EEECEHIMNLCER S
working capital mE 1,971 (13,666)
Decrease in inventories FERL 7,327 22,643
Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits, trade HEZe  BWESFHE
receivables, other receivables and prepayments  E {th & Uz Z0 18 K 78 ﬁ O]
S (1) 22,157 (10,724)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K H b e 5RIER A (24,802) (4,022)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations wEHR,/ (TR EE 6,653 (5,769)
Interest received B F B 67 33
Income tax paid BRI ?R (2,611) (2,929)
Income tax refund Frig B = 1,299
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities ESEE S, (Fr )
e FR 4,109 (7,366)

E-BEREREAERA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

:nv'_ﬁ/\iﬁﬁl)lbgﬁ (I%E)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE-_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HILFE

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
8= HE
—EB-BF —ET—-hHF
B=+H mA=+H

LtEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FAT
Investing activities KEES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE WENMEH (242) (283,291)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME BMELREHNE
equipment FRIB = 720
Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) U B B B8 A B (F0BR U BB
i858 &) (33) = (3,854)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMARESFE (242) (26,425)
Financing activities & ES)
Proceeds on issue of convertible note EITAIRREIB RSB - 39,200
Repayments of convertible note AR EERER = (39,200)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilites (£ EBEH RS &5 (19,866) -
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEAERNE (2,174) -
Net proceeds of new bank loans FRITERE %’7\ T8 % 58 8,332 -
Repayment of bank loans EEETER = (5,806)
Increase in amount due to ultimate holding FE B B A% N B TR 1B
company 1 0 10,450 8,620
Repayment of principal elements of a finance EEMEHRENETESEY
lease = (827)
Interest paid on borrowings B EHF B (152) (128)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities mEES (FrA),/ FriEr
H 4 HEE (3,410) 1,859
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RekReZSEYRE I,
equivalents Cm) 558 457 (31,932)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREHFE (770) (188)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHHIR @ FIRE&EEBY
the year 22,483 54,603
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, FHRKMIR & LIRS EEY
represented by bank balances and cash (BN SRITEHRRIRSE) 22,170 22,483

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 &z —

GENERAL

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

On 28 July 2017, Prosper One Enterprises Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Meng Guangyin, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Tic Tac Investment Holdings Company Limited, a
company owned by Mr. Lam and his spouse, Ms. Chan Ka Yee,
Elsa (hereinafter referred to as the “Previous Controlling
Shareholders”) for acquiring 70.625% interests of the Company.
The transfer of the shares was completed on 15 August 2017.
Accordingly, Mr. Meng Guangyin became the new ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company and presently he is the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive director
of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Prosper One
Enterprises Limited and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Meng
Guangyin.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company,
the “Group”) are the retail and wholesale of watches in Hong Kong,
and acting as agent (for financial reporting purposes) in the sales
and trading of fertilisers raw materials, fertilisers and other related
products. The address of the principal place of business of the
Company was Unit 4205, No. 1 Harbour Road, Convention Plaza
Office Tower, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, which has been changed to
Level 43, AIA Tower, 183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
with effective on 8 May 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE-_Z_-_ZFNMA=1+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERANIIRKEBITEEE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHEESEAN(EBBBER
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HEA]

a. New and amendments to HKFRSs that are a FAEEBHERZIITE
mandatorily effective for the current year ERETEBUBERE
% 8l
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) ERhestAS R EG NIRAE
has issued the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that are REFHEE R ER ] REEE]
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group: BB EHREED
HKFRS 16 Leases BEMBREEN HE
F16%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax BEBIBRUBRE FENEENHTETH
Treatments ZBZEE)-
ABER
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative EEMBREER AEBHEZEMT
Compensation FEIR(BITR) HE
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BRGEREI0% HEEE FHELE
Settlement CHES)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates ERQERENRE RELNIRLELE
and Joint Ventures CHES) aly] E%?Eﬁn
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS ERUBREER BEHBHLES
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23 “E-REZE F3%  BEUBHRE
“E-tEBBz  EAENE BE
FREIE BirEAIE 129 R
BEEFERE235%

ZEFTA
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 &z —

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

a. New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 is discussed below. The
application of the amendments to the other standards listed above
in the current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior year
and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impact of HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes former HKAS 17: Leases on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures of lease contracts or
contracts containing leases. On lessee side, HKFRS 16 requires a
lessee to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the
rights and obligations created by all leases. On lessor side, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the accounting requirements in the
HKAS 17; accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
The Group has chosen to apply the following practical expedients
at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

1. The Group did not reassess whether a contract was, or
contained, a lease; and had not applied HKFRS 16 to those
contracts that were not previously identified as leases
applying previous accounting standards. Instead, the Group
shall only apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying previous accounting standards
and to contracts that are entered into or changed on or after
the date of initial application of that HKFRS.
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o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II‘I-F

B B 5 R R P R ()

TENA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

a.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impact of HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

2.

The Group relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an alternative of
impairment review.

The Group did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to leases for which the lease term will end within the
reporting period but account for those leases in the same
way as short term leases.

The Group excluded initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset and to use hindsight in determining
the lease term.

The Group applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.

The Group used hindsight based on facts and circumstance
as at date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination
options.

Except for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying
asset is of low value, for all other leases previously classified as
operating leases applying the previous accounting standards in
which the Group is the lessee, the Group applies HKFRS 16
retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 May 2019.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 & ZE_—=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

B 75 ¥R 2% B R ()

TEMA=TAILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI REEITERY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHEELN(E R YT K
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) S 280]) @

a. New and amendments to HKFRSs that are a AEEBHEERZIE
mandatorily effective for the current year LREITEBMKERSE
(Continued) ZE Al (@)

Impact of HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BBUB $ ZBE16RHEE

M E (&

As at 1 May 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities RN_ZT— 71$ AA—H AEEHER

and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease PZHEEBLRERAEEE  ©%HE

liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease payments by EREERE SV BHRE ED16.C8(b)
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of (ii) 38 & B9 (X 7] B 5 s B R FE & N 3R
initial application is recognised in the opening accumulated losses EMHEEAEaE - e RERBH

and comparative information has not been restated. MEREZERNBYRFTEERER L

WEMIARET -

A reconciliation between the operating lease commitment as at 30 MIZAREHENGEEVEHRREEDN

April 2019 as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for RZE—NFONA=ZTHHNELEHE

the preceding reporting period and the lease liabilities at the date of AEENEAEREBHENEEASREDN

initial application is as follows. WEEWT -
HK$'000
FAT
Total operating lease commitment as at 30 April 2019 —E-hFNA-tTRHKERE
AR 43,757
Weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate used FER A B i F I AE A ERER
) = 6.5%
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental borrowing rates T E & &R B S E XA XK 39,202
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease term ending W AIATREE A —EE
within 12 months from the date of initial application HXEAHEHEI2EAR
ERHEE (1,156)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases recognised upon RERBBM G HmEERE169 K
application of HKFRS 16 MRACKLHERBHEERE 38,046

Lease liabilities as at 1 May 2019 R-ZZE—NAFRA—BzZHAEAE 38,046

Analysed as baR)iw=]

Current &) 19,287

Non-current ERE 18,759

B BHRERBRAR
“E-ZEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERMEIREEIEEY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHREER(FEMBER
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) £ X8 ) g
a. New and amendments to HKFRSs that are a AEEBHEERZIE

mandatorily effective for the current year ERETEBUBERE
(Continued) ZE Al (@)
Impact of HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) EBUNBHRELERF16RHEE
VEE (@)
A reconciliation between the lease liabilities and the right-of-use REaXERHE HEaEaEAE
assets at the date of initial application is as follows. BEZENHERNT -
HK$'000
FA&TT
Lease liabilities HEBE 38,046
Add: Prepaid rental expenses m:ENEEREA 1,870
Less: Impairment loss on right-of-use assets recognised W ERRNEAEEERBEREE
(noted 24(c)) (MY #£24(c)) (4,385)
Right-of-use assets EREEE 35,531
The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS TERBIMBEE RSB RELENE
16 on accumulated losses at 1 May 2019. 1658 —T—NWFRA—HHNEFE
BRI E
HK$'000
FHET
Accumulated losses RitEE
Recognition of right-of-use assets BREAEEE 35,531
Recognition of lease liabilities WREERRE (38,046)
Decrease in trade receivables, other receivables and JEUNE 508 - N GIE KA
prepayments 3R R D (1,870)
Decrease in trade and other payables BB 5308 & EH S sRIER 5,411
Net decrease in accumulated losses at 1 May 2019 R-ZZE—NFRA—HE:FEER
IFEE 1,026

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

For the year ended 30 April 2020

B 75 ¥R 2% B R ()

BE_T_TFMA=THIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERANIIRKEBITEEE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BREEAN(FEBEHBER
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) £ 28 ]) @)

a. New and amendments to HKFRSs that are a FAEEBHERZIITE
mandatorily effective for the current year ERETEBUBERE
(Continued) ZE Al (@)

Impact of HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) EAMBRELEANFI6HKEE

VEE ()

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised THREIGFR _ZE—NLFRA—H

in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 May 2019. MBI EINSBME

Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been Ho k@B ZHNIER I KT A

included.

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported under
at 30 April HKFRS 16
2019 Adjustments at1 May 2019
RiE
EBUMEHRSE
icked R %1655
R=ZB—-hF R=ZZB—hF
B=+H EA—HW
WENRAEE HE REE
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
B &t FHET FHTT FAET

Non-current assets ERBEE

Right-of-use assets TRAEEE — 35,531 35,531

Current assets RENEE

Trade receivables, other FEWE S5E - Hih

receivables and prepayments & Ui 3k 18 K FE < Z 1B (i 137,615 (1,870) 135,745

Current liabilities REBAE

Lease liabilities HEBE 27) - (19,287) (19,287)

Trade and other payables N E 5 FIE

H fh JE A RN 1B (i) (137,808) 4,385 (133,220)
(i) 203
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Provision for other liabilities and £t & & & 3% H # &
charges (iii) (2,068) 823 (1,245)

Lease liabilities HEAE 27) — (18,759) (18,759)

Equity R

Accumulated losses Z2:tER 65,204 (1,026) 64,178

E-BRZERARAT
“E-ZEER
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NOTES
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E B R AR M A (8D

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

a.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impact of HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(v)

The adjustment relates to prepaid rental expenses as at 30 April 2019 and
was adjusted to right-of-use assets at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16.

The adjustment relates to provision for onerous leases for several retail
outlets as at 30 April 2019 and was adjusted to right-of-use assets at
transition.

The adjustment relates to accrued lease liabilities of several retail outlets in
which the lessors provided rent-free period. The carrying amount of the
lease incentive liabilities under trade and other payables and provision for
other liabilities and charges as at 30 April 2019 was adjusted to
accumulated losses at transition.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities for the
year ended 30 April 2020, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 May 2019 as disclosed above.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

b. Amended HKFRSs that have been issued
and early adopted

Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
allow lessee to elect not to assess whether a rent concession
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a
lease modification. Such practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

° The change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change;

o Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 May 2019 and
elected not to apply lease modification accounting for all rent
concessions granted by the lessors, which occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 30
April 2020. The rent concessions amounted to HK$2,422,000 has
been credited to “Other gains and losses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 April 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

c. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint VVenture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS16 (Since 1 May 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS16) and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

BEREFTHE @

A BB 2HmMmME - A FENE
REAFEAEZHABBAIERE
EEAFEFEZG ARBHAEE
BZEBUNBERE — F_HFE=
o HBMT

s FRBABBERERARIR
AERFEZEE2HRAZEER
BEREBRMBZRE(CREH
)

s F_RBABBERTEREFE &
BEZEEXRABZAIERSLH
BEEEZBARE X

s FZRBABEREEXAMFBZ
THBRGABUE -

TESHBRRERTX

mERXE

RARBRERAAATRAAAE
HEBRRENBARZHBRR B
M TR - A2 B R -

. HBERAATZEN:

s W2HEBIBRERBEDTMAY
NA oz mRsER &

e FRAEEMFEHEDB IS -

HWEFERBRBER EXAE =18
HIEREFAE-EHRXZEHKRE(L A
CESEHNTHERTHETRER
Bl A I -



For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the assets acquired at the
respective fair values, and the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring control over a product or
service to the customer at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitied under that performance
obligation, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time. HKFRS
15 identifies the following three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over
time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance, as the
Group performs;

(i)  When the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced,;

(i) ~ When the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the Group’s activities do not fall into any
of these three situations, then under HKFRS 15 the Group
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

(a) Sale of merchandise
Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised at a
point in time when control of the products is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the products.

(b) Trading of fertilisers raw materials, fertilisers and

other related products (the “fertilisers and other
products”)
The Group determines that the nature of its promise is to
arrange for the fertilisers and other products to be provided
by the suppliers to the customers and hence, for financial
reporting purposes under HKFRS 15, the Group is an agent
not a principal. Commission income is recognised at a point
in time when the services are rendered.

(c) Service income on repairing watches
The Group provides repair services on watches to customers,
which is a single performance obligation. The service income
is recognised at a point in time when the service is
completed.

(d) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

() Promotion income
Promotion income is recognised when the Group’s right to
receive the income has been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2a)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2a)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of land and buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payment on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
measurement at lease liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2a) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. The remaining right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be paid the Group under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2a) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment;

° the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review, in which the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in
Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for
staff in the PRC are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

3.

BE_T_TFOA=THLEFEER

BEAXEFTHEX®@w

BiIE

PIT 15 15 7 S 48 3R By B S 50 1R SR SE AR
THE AN -

REEMRENDIRFEANRERRA B
HoERBABTAAELMFENE
RTINS TEE - NiE—FT
AEBRRATANBER  HE
IR EBaE hEM2ERERMZ
MM AIEIE] - NEBEVAFH 18
NEEFEARSRESRNESEMRK
EELFOEMOBERTE -

EEMBNRGEMHRERNEESR
BEREEEERRY N EMER
MHERENEREZRER - ETHR
BRE-REMEERNERLEEZR
BR-BEEHBEEENNAEERER
T8 ) LA 5 T H00RL T B 1 = ER B B
RAEARER -WEBEEZEAT
FERAVMNBASHNENR A
TEEMBBENMSERMES A
TeERAEHETHREERAR -

EEHBEEERMBRRZREMRE
AERRAMEBTUNRER BRIELAEH
BRe W N EREZRED  mMER
MZRRAETIERARFRED -
B 5% B 18 I 25 4 B O AT 008G B
MERMELANEEHRBREE 1R
FIREAS B FE 2 1 B BR B AB 1 M /] &)
RERMEEZENZAFARRAERKR
RE AW B OB - T LARERR o

E-EEERERA
:g_gﬁiﬁ

« 109



o For the year ended 30 April 2020 &=

110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible asset

Club membership with indefinite life is carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to
exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Impairment on tangible, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and right-of-use assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible, intangible assets and right-of-
use assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition”.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVOCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets designated at FVOCI (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at FVOCI
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at FVPL are also
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for the “expected credit loss”
(*ECL”) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
CREEEINEERE )

BE_T_TFMA=THIFE

For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

TENA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at FVOCI and financial assets at amortised cost
are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs
except for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank loans
and amount due to ultimate holding company) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified
as at FVOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCI upon
application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated
losses.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised.

Principal versus agent considerations for trading of
fertilisers and other products

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or as an
agent, for financial reporting purposes, in the sales of goods
requires exercise of judgement and consideration of all relevant
facts and circumstances. In the evaluation of whether the Group is
acting as a principal or an agent, the Group noted that it does not
obtain control of the fertilisers and other products from the suppliers
before passing on to customers. The Group also considers,
individually and in combination, whether the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the fertilisers and
other products, is subject to inventory risk and has discretion in
establishing prices for the goods. Significant judgement is required
when inventory risk is not significant. Having considered the
relevant facts and circumstances, management considers that the
Group does not obtain control in respect of the trading activities
involving the fertilisers and other products. Accordingly, the Group
considers that for financial reporting purposes, it is acting as an
agent for sale and trading of fertilisers and other products and the
corresponding revenue is presented on a net basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 & ZE—
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values and impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The Group tests annually whether its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies. The assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based
on value in use calculations which require the use of assumptions
and estimates.

As at 30 April 2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are HK$15,281,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$5,366,000) (2019:
HK$23,536,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$4,988,000)), and HK$836,000 (net of impairment loss
recognised for the year of HK$18,383,000) (2019: Nil) respectively.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly in response to change in market trends,
customer tastes and business environment. The Group will
reassess the estimations by the end of the reporting period. As at
30 April 2020, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$22,842,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$22,982,000) (2019: HK$35,283,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$17,868,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 &%

5. REVENUE 5. W=

AEBFAREBUBHREERNFE15

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, all of which were recognised

from contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15, for
the year is as follows:

REEAZRF(MBERFHEEFR

AR DMWT

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
Bz HE
—ERCRF —E-AF
A=+H mA=+H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers U Y=E-Y=F=N )00, &

Sales of merchandise e 70,262 178,321
Service income PR 75 U A 150 942
Commission income & A 23,781 23,086
94,193 202,349

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFSHHWE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of merchandise

The performance obligation is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the customer, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the store or on delivery
of the merchandise for wholesale segment. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately and within 90 days at the point
the customer purchases the products under the retail and
wholesale segment respectively.

Service income

The Group provides services on repairing watches to customers.
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
service is completed and advance payments are normally required
before rendering the services. The Group’s enforceable right to the
payment is subject to the completion of the whole services. The
services are for periods less than one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

5.

TENA=THILFE

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Commission income

The performance obligation is completed at a point in time when
the services on arranging trading of fertiliser and other related
products are completed. Payment is generally in advance from the
customers before the agency services are provided.

As at the end of the reporting periods, the Group did not have
significant amount of unrecognised revenue related to performance
obligations which were unsatisfied.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, who are
the chief operating decision makers (the “CODM”) of the Group, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, are focused on three main operations of the Group
identified in accordance with the business nature and the size of
the operations.

Specifically, the reportable and operating segments of the Group
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

° Retail business of watches (“Retail”) — retail of multi brands
of watches in Hong Kong

° Wholesalers business of watches (“Wholesale”) — wholesale
of multi brands of watches in Hong Kong

° Trading of fertilisers and other related products (“Trading”) —
provision of agency services in relation to trading of fertilisers
and other related products

There are no significant sales or other transactions among the
segments, except as disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEER @
Segment revenue and results DR R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AEEPMEFENZRES N 2R
operating and reportable segment for the two years: DEE D ZWHE N EETAOT ¢
For the year ended 30 April 2020 BE_Z-_ZFNA=1+HLEE
Retail Wholesale Trading Elimination Total
28 #t 2% B3 ¥ 8 et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER FERT FERT FERT

Revenue Wz
External sales HNER3E & 67,897 2,365 — - 70,262
External service SN EB AR 75 W A
income 149 1 — — 150
External commission %M 2040 4 U A
income - - 23,781 - 23,781
Inter-segment sales o EEEE 238 812 - (1,050) -
68,284 3,178 23,781 (1,050) 94,193
Segment (loss)/profit 5 &5 (K5 18),/ % 7 (54,964) (1,881) 12,565 - (44,280)
Finance costs Bh & AN (2,326)
Unallocated Group FoEEEMY
expenses (9,573)
Loss before tax DN SR ] (56,179)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEWER @
Segment revenue and results (Continued) o EB U I B A ()
For the year ended 30 April 2019 HE-_ZE-—NWFNA=1+HLFE
Retail Wholesale Trading  Elimination Total
e Bt g5 Eag HEt

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET TAET TR TR

Revenue g

External sales SNEBSHE 175,303 3,018 — - 178,321

External service SN ER AR 75 A

income 939 3 - - 942
External commission M #8404 U A
income — — 23,086 - 23,086
Inter-segment sales DEEEE — 1,266 — (1,266) —
176,242 4,287 23,086 (1,266) 202,349

Segment (loss)/profit 2 &8 (E518),/ 3% F (16,231) (854) 7,467 — (9,618)
Finance costs & Ak A (128)
Unallocated Group AOoREERY

expenses (12,887)
Loss before tax & %5 B 5 18 (22,639)
Sales between segments are carried out at terms mutually agreed DEBEEENIEA R G 2E8 T HE
between the parties involved in the transactions. The revenue from BEZIERET MR TERESR 2
external parties reported to the executive directors is measured in a SNERET A F g g A B R EM
manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of profit 2EHWER "B AREE -
or loss and other comprehensive income.
No segment assets and liabilities information is provided as no such AT ETHAAERETELLS LS
information is regularly provided to the CODM of the Group for the ERMSEENABEER  LUFEE
purpose of making decision for resources allocation and HEBRAPI L XB (AT - TR
performance assessment. HEMBEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

EEPN A =+HIEFE

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #ZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Geographical information

During the year, the Group’s operation is mainly located in the PRC
and Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue by geographical location of
customers, based on location of delivery of the watches or services,
is detailed below:

o EE R @

DEMBERESE @)
78 B 4}
FRAEEEBIBMARATER
E o AEEREFMIBAE (EAR
5 5% BB TS M0 A BE) Bl 5 > Mg ak ¥
BT

Year Ended Year Ended

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

Bz HE

—BRCEHE —T-hF

A=+H WmA=+H

“HFE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FAETT

PRC ey 23,781 23,086
Hong Kong HE 70,412 179,263
Total BET 94,193 202,349

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers in the PRC
and Hong Kong. There are no single external customers who
contributed more than 10% of total revenue of the Group for both
years.

The information of the Group’s non-current assets excluding
deferred tax assets and financial assets by geographical location is
detailed below:

AEEBZERETBZREFERELZ
EP MEFEANLES —IHEEEP
EREBAREAKZENI0% -

AEBRMBUEI D ZHRDEE
(TEREEHBREERSREE)H
ICRCHNE

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

—F=%F —FTNF

mMA=+H MmA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

PRC H 148 176
Hong Kong BB 19,969 27,360
Total st 20,117 27,536

E-BRZERARAT

“E-ZEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE-_Z_-_ZFNMA=1+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEWER @
Segment revenue and results (Continued) o EB U I B A ()
Other disclosures Hith i &
For the year ended 30 April 2020 BE-_Z-_ZHFNA=1+HLEE
Retail Wholesale Trading Total
TE #2 g5 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FB FB 5 FHR  FER

Addition to non-current ANBIERBEE

assets 242 — — 242
Depreciation of property, WE - BB MR

plant and equipment e 7,707 279 34 8,020
Depreciation of right-of-use £ & EITE

assets 23,693 — 243 23,936
Impairment loss of property, #1% - &= & & &

plant and equipment L EEE

(reversed)/recognised (BmE),/ BHER (94) 557 = 463
Loss on disposal of HEWE  BE R

property, plant and HEBE

equipment 3 - = 3
Gain on rental concessions 78 & 18 2 i 35 2,422 - — 2,422
Allowance for write-down of 2 2R TFE 2

Inventories recognised BB 4,876 238 - 5,114
Impairment loss on right-of- & Fl # & & i & &5 18

use assets 18,343 - 40 18,383

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R AR M A (8D

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE-_E-—ZFMA=1+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEER @
Segment revenue and results (Continued) o EB U I B A ()
Other disclosures (Continued) HAi & @)
For the year ended 30 April 2019 HE-Z-NFUNA=THLFE
Retail Wholesale Trading Total
e 2 g5 Er
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FAET FAT

Addition to non-current ANBIERBEE

assets 32,443 836 — 33,279
Depreciation of property, YE - BB MR

plant and equipment e 4,487 - 35 4,522
Loss on write-off of property, #4412 « i &= &

plant and equipment BBz ER 382 — - 382
Net gain on disposal of EEWE  BE R

property, plant and B2 F W=

equipment 2,099 — — 2,099
Allowance for write-down of & #2 (# 8 #UR

inventories recognised/ FEEE

(reversed) (6,475) 507 — (5,968)
Impairment loss on property, © R E - FiE &

plant and equipment RERBEESE

recognised 4,404 — — 4,404
Provision for onerous EHRREELEHE

operating leases B

recognised 4,561 — — 4,561
Write-off of prepayment and  #i $4 78 1+ 3¢ 18 % JiE it

receivables RIE — — 2,731 2,731

E-ERZERERAR ’l 3 ’l
—ETEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE-_Z_-_ZFNMA=1+HILFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. EttEREE

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
Bz HE
—E-EHF —ET—hF
mA=+A WA=+H
ILFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Rent concessions (note (a)) HEBEMF @) 2,422 -
Foreign exchange gain B 5 A 210 54
(Loss)/net gain on disposal of property, plant  EHEWE - BELXREZ
and equipment (B11|),/Fh = ()] 2,099
Loss on write-off of property, plant and WEE - BMENMEEZ
equipment &5 18 = (382)
Interest income FLEHA 67 33
Sundry income H A YA 34 40
Government grants (note (b)) R IT 48 B (M 22 (b)) 706 -
Promotion income HEE WA 267 -
Fair value gain on financial asset at FVPL REAFEFAEENEREE
Z N EWEE 61 69
3,764 1,913
Notes: et
(@)  Rent concessions represent the reductions in lease payment arising from @ MHeEBZEHECOVD-19EBEMNEE

COVID-19-related rent concession of approximately HK$2,422,000 in
respect of rental periods that fell in the financial year ended 30 April 2020.

B HME SRR D 892,422,000
T RBE_E_ZFENMA=1tAHI
B FEmEE] -
(b) The government grants represent financial subsidies for compensating
expenses already incurred or giving immediate financial support to the (b) BFEBEHEEEN T HETHE
Group. There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies in relation to NAEANEREAFEEBEYENTK
the grants and the grants were determined at the sole discretion of B - A B B I 4 Ok g K B R (sl sk
relevant government authorities in the PRC and Hong Kong. EEE MBI AaTEEEEEBER
& REENIERE -

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ZEFHOA=THIEFE

For the year ended 30 April 2020 &&=

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EERAK

Year Ended Year Ended

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

BZ H=

- ey 323 —E-NF

mMA=+H WmA=+H

LtFE IFFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Interest on bank loans MITEFRFE 152 52
Interest on convertible note (Note) Gl Hﬁ SBRME (ML) = 70
Finance lease charges BEHESRMA = 6
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGENE 2,174 —
Total #Et 2,326 128

Note: On 31 July 2018, the Company issued 0.8% convertible notes to a
financial institution in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000 for a term of
one year. The convertible notes were fully early redeemed on 19 October
2018. Interest was payable at 0.8% per annum for the period from the
issue date to the early redemption date. A cancellation fee of
HK$1,000,000 for the early redemption was paid to the convertible
noteholder and included in “Other expense”. The entire convertible note
contract was designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition. No fair value
gain or loss was recognised during the year as the early redemption price
was the same as the issue price.

M :

R-E—NFLtA=+—8 £A2Q28M
— R RS EIT0.8% A B E i
7N 4 %B 440,000,000 T A H— 4 o
ZEABRREBEECR_T—N\F+A
+ThB2BRFER - BRITAZRT
§E 0 B HIR - FE R E IR 0.8% U B
12 F FE [ /) 3§ #1,000,00078 7T B X
HFAIBRBREEREE AL ATEARA
Xl FANBRBREEEHNANIER
BWIETEARAFAESAEBE BiIRR
fEEEREETERSER  WERLE
HRAFERISKES -

E-BEREREAERA
gt Sfﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BREAIERE

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
Bz H=
—E-EF —NF
A=+H mA=+H
ILFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FA&TT
Loss before tax has been arrived at after BB AEE IR GER), Nk
(crediting)/charging: ITEIBERET :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %) % - k= MR EITE 8,020 4,522
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREETE 23,936 -
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B %7 A 900 1,000
Provision for onerous operating leases ERREELLEHEE
recognised 1 = 4,561
Provision for reinstatement costs recognised & #E R & 18 Bk 2N £ 5 33 408
Write-off of prepayment and receivables T8 T8 1~ 78 K E YR - 2,731
Impairment loss on property, plant and BEHERYE BELR {% RE
equipment recognised E 18 463 4,404
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ERRAERAEEERE
recognised &5 18 18,383 -
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EFREHMW(ME12) 5,469 6,341
Salaries, wages, and other employee benefits %4 - TEREME T 2
of other staff HivfE B8 F 22,845 24,226
Discretionary bonus of other staff Hih 8 T2 BIEIEA 1,975 3,138
Retirement benefit scheme contribution of EME I ZRKEHETE
other staff 3k 1,344 1,705
Total staff costs BT AR 31,633 35,410
Allowance for write-down of inventories 2R (BR) MR ESE
recognised/(reversed) B 5114 (5,968)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RERZ 2 FERKAK 44,702 118,712
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 30 April 2020

BE_T_TFMA=THIFE

10. FR BB M

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
BZE H=E
—EC-EHF —E-NF
B=+H mA=+H
LtFEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
Current taxation Bl EA 7 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEARFH = 10
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PREMEMRESR ([EEREH]) 2,964 2,882
2,964 2,892
Under/(over) provision for prior years BEFERETR/GBERE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAFFH = (331)
PRC EIT REI TSN 124 (83)
124 (414)
Deferred taxation (note 17) EERIE (M 3E17) (262) 1,782
2,826 4,260

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
taxable profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%,
and taxable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
Directors considered the amount involved from the application of
the two-tiered profits tax rates as insignificant to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 30 April 2020, no provision for taxation in Hong
Kong was made as a subsidiary had sufficient unused tax loss
brought forward to offset against the estimated assessable profit
for the year and the other subsidiaries in Hong Kong incurred tax
loss during the year. Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 30
April 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

RENGSHRAS  GEKREZEE2E
B8 7T B SRR B A 75 128.25% 1y B K
B MEBB28 S BTHERE G
HIZ16E%M M EHHR - BEERA/ B
1 M) 15 B W AR B 12 P8 B B & BB T AR
BMBHRRZFEEM-

T om

REBEE-E-_ZFTFNA=Z1+AHLF
B mR—EHBRAREERLEZNE
EEAHARBEEEBNIEEEAEED
HETERWEN R BEBSEMIE QA
RAFEHYEAMRBEREER WL ER
EERBEELBEBE - BE-_ZTE—NF
WMA=Z1+HIFENEBNEHR IR
M ER TR T M 16.5%F & °

REFEEEMSHEA(TEERES
EDREEMEBRZEBES - W E
FEZTEMNBRART ZHER25% °

E-BRERERAT
—B-BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE—Z-_ZFMA=1H |tFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FT B BB X )

136

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

RFEZREAXEAEEEER RE
tmeErElaRZBRAIBEYERN
T~

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
Bz H=E
—EZERF —E-hNF
B=+H mA=+H
ItEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before tax B A A5 18 (56,179) (22,633)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% IR AN Fr 15 5 £ 16.5% =+ & >
(2019: 16.5%) (note) MBB(ZZE—NF :16.5%)
(K1 7t) (9,270) (3,734)
Tax effects of: NTEEZHEZE:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR A X 1,615 2,787
Income not taxable for tax purposes EmARBIA (10) (368)
Tax losses not recognised AERHIBEEIE 5,857 4,164
Deductible temporary differences not AIERUNB GG =58
recognised 3,911 —
Under/(over)provision for prior years BAFEERETE
(EBEEHE) 124 (414)
Different tax rate of subsidiaries MEBARZTRME 747 879
Reversal of opening deferred tax assets BYIEERIEE ERD - 1,360
Others HAitb (148) (414)
Income tax expense FriSfif = 2,826 4,260

Note: The domestic tax rate, which is the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate, in the
jurisdiction where the operation of the Group substantially based is used.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of taxable temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB16,255,000 (2019: RMB7,973,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

11. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting year.

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

BE_T_TFOA=THLEFEER

1. RE

BHEZZT-_TFR-_F-NFWA=
THEIEFE WERAAR G ®ERR
%mﬁikﬁmﬁﬁﬂkuvaﬁ%
FRIPEERZRMEAEE

12.EERFETHAENE

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BiEEA TR R AIENYIKE
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, CENEERTIETHAEME W
is as follows: T
Employer’s contribution
Name of director EEn% Fees Salaries Discretionary bonus to pension scheme Total
EXRHhe
ne #¢ MERAL AR @ct
HK$'000 TET 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBZ8F “T-NF ZBIRE —T-NF ZBIBF “T-NF ZB-%F —T-NF -“BZBF —T-nF

Executive Directors: HITEE
Meng Guangyin (note a) AR (M ita) = 4,800 4,218 18 18 4,818 4,296
Liu Guoging 2EE - 250 250 13 13 263 263
Liu Jiagiang EIpE: - 179 176 1 6 6 196 182
Meng Bo (note b) o (H##b) - - - 88 - - 4 - %
Liao Pin Tsung (note ) Batx(#itc) - - - 1,281 - - 8 - 1,289
Independent Non-Executive 187 3177

Directors: EE:
Tian Zhiyuan HEE 96 65 - - - - - 96 65
Lee Chun Keung (note d) THEB (M) 48 18 - - - - 48 18
Wang Luping (note ¢) TEY (e 48 17 = 48 17
Chan, Yee Ping Michael ¥

(note ) (K1) - ] - - - - - %8
Hu Jinrui (note g) Eﬁ% H(hitg) - 12 - - - 12
Gao Jizhong (note h BB (K tn) - 9 - 9
Total @& 192 219 5,229 6,073 1 - 37 49 5,469 6,341

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019.

EXARATESZHME I RERA
DA RAREEE R EE RS

2N
& e

EXFRBLIFATEEZME O
FHEARREEZHE -

BE-_T-FFR-F-NAFOEA=
THLEFE BEEERTHAHR
BEAZHREXRBRERTAME

E—ERERERA A
SE-EEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE— SFENA=THIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

() Mr. Meng Guangyin is the Chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

(b) Mr. Meng Bo was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017 and passed away on 28 November 2018.

(c) Mr. Liao Pin Tsung was appointed as the executive director and chief
operating officer on 18 October 2017 and vice-chairman of the board of
the Company on 18 October 2017. He resigned from the executive
director and chief operating officer and the vice-chairman of the board on
18 October 2018.

(d) Mr. Lee Chun Keung was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 December 2018.

(e) Mr. Wang Luping was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 27 December 2018.

(G} Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael was appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 20 September 2017 and resigned
from the independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
December 2018.

(9) Mr. Hu Jinrui was appointed as the independent non-executive director of
the Company on 20 September 2017 and resigned from the independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 August 2018.

(h) Mr. Gao Jizhong was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 22 August 2018 and was resigned from the
independent non-executive director of the Company on 25 October 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B SRR M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. R RS HMES
FRA - AEENRAEZSHHES T
BE—RZREF(ZE—NF:—8E
=) BRAEHI 2 FBEH N £ XK
12 EBpMB(ZE—NF: =ZF)K
EBEENFARAETBTHAENKR
SHMEEB ZEHEMEBOT

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one director (2019: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining four (2019: three) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

Bz HE

—EEF —E-NF

BA=+H mA=+H

LEFE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « HMZB R EYF| = 5,471 2,473

Discretionary bonus [SE=pEAN 990 1,140
Retirement benefit costs IR ARAE FI B A

— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme —BHIEAEETE 63 54

6,524 3,667

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the WIEARANRESTMEHFTMNE T 5 &

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the ZHAHNRSEHMES AS:
following bands:
Number
A
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
BZE HZE
—EEF —E-NF
A=+H mA=+H
IEFE IEFE
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ -1,000,000/8 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7£-1,500,000 7% 7T 2 —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2,000,000 7% 7T - 1

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

2,000,001 7 7€ -2,500,000 % 7T - —
2,500,001 7 7T -3,000,000 % 7T
3,000,001 7 7T -3,500,000 % 7T 1 —

E-EEERERAT
—B-BEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continved) 13. A2 B S &HME S @)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of REFBEFERNITEARNAFTEERANE
the directors of the Company or the chief executive of the Group or BXrZTBRAESRE RS HFMHAL
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon SIS fEA NN B AR & E N B R
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019: nil). EERNESHIIEABERBE(ZE
—NF ) o
14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RN ER AFE(L IR E A & #5E &
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: BIVBREATHEASE

Year Ended Year Ended

30/4/2020 30/4/2019
Bz BHE
—EZEF —E-NF
BAB=+H MA=+H
t+EFEE IEFE
Loss for the year attributable to owners KAEHEBEARBEFEEREIE
of the Company (HK$’'000) (F#&T) (59,005) (26,893)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 2317 EmAR i 1
in issue (note) (Kt7) 800,000,000 800,000,000
Basic and diluted loss per share ERERREFEEE
(HK cents per share) (FRRA ) (7.38) (3.36)
Note: The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 April B BE—E—hENA=+tRIEEY
2019 did not assume the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes EREEERNTEIBREAQXTR
which were issued and redeemed during that year since their assumed S EERNERTRERN AT RRER
conversion as at the date of issuance would result in a decrease in loss WreEm AREHBERETHERYE
per share. BEHREREBRD -
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

BE_T_TFOA=THLEFEER

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % -BERKE

Motor
Leasehold Furniture Office vehicles
improvements and fixtures  equipment and yacht Total
HEMELE KAREE BLOERE REREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT FAT
COST 5%
At 1 May 2018 RZZE—N\F
hHA—H 19,148 3,578 1,028 8,818 32,572
Additions NE 9,100 — 31 18,160 27,291
Acquired on acquisition of Uz B — K B A A
a subsidiary (note 33) K5 T B A
(H5#33) - — - 1,088 1,988
Disposals & — (2,911) (364) (7,855) (11,130)
Write-off s (10,993) - - - (10,993)
Exchange realignment G 3 2 — — — (11) (11)
At 30 April 2019 W_Efﬂi
A=+H 17,255 667 695 21,100 39,717
Additions N E 236 — 6 — 242
Disposals & — (189) (26) - (215)
Write-off g (1,716) - - - (1,716)
Exchange realignment HNEE B — — — (12) 12)
At 30 April 2020 R-ZE-EF
B=+H 15,775 478 675 21,088 38,016
DEPRECIATION AND HERRBE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 May 2018 R-_Z—N\&F
AH—H 17,275 3,632 920 4,648 26,375
Provided for the year FARE 2,085 13 40 2,384 4,522
Impairment loss recognised 2 & 52 8 (B &5 18 4,404 — — — 4,404
Eliminated on disposals A S B 2 54 — (2,895) (336) (5,278) (8,509)
Eliminated on write-off 58 B T 58 (10,611) - - - (10,611)
At 30 April 2019 RZZ—NF
mA=+H 13,153 650 624 1,754 16,181
Provided for the year FAEE 3,614 5 32 4,369 8,020
Impairment loss recognised . F 32 )5 & &5 18 463 - - - 463
Eliminated on disposals 7 B Y - (189) 23) - 212)
Eliminated on write-off A 88 B 5 4 (1,716) — — - (1,716)
Exchange realignment GNIE T B — — — 1) 1)
At 30 April 2020 R-ZZB-ZF
MA=1+H 15,514 466 633 6,122 22,735
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 April 2020 R-ZZ-Z2F
MA=+H 261 12 42 14,966 15,281
At 30 April 2019 RZZE—NF
IMmA=+H 4,102 17 71 19,346 23,536

E-EEERERA
:g_gﬁiﬁ
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NOTES

TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

TENA=AIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company have
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of the
Group’s leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets which are used
in the Group’s retail business of watches in view of the continuous
unfavorable operating results from that business. The Group’s retail
business has been adversely impacted by the protests in Hong Kong
since June 2019 and the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since January
2020. The management estimated the recoverable amount of each of the
retail outlets, each representing an individual cash-generating unit, to
which the assets belonged. The recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units have been determined based on value in use calculations.
The discount rate in measuring the amount of value in use was 12%
(2019:10%).

Based on the results of the impairment assessments, the management
estimated that most of the retail outlets would not generate positive net
cash inflows in the future and hence the recoverable amounts of the
relevant leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets belonging to
these retail outlets were insignificant. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$463,000 (2019: HK$4,404,000) and HK$18,383,000 (2019: nil) have
been recognised on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets respectively for the year ended 30 April 2020 and included in “selling
and distribution costs”.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,
taking into account their residual values, on a straight-line basis as
follows:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht

Lease terms of 2 to 5 years
Shorter of lease term or 5 years

3 years
5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZ_—_ZE_FTFINA=+HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
Land and
buildings
T REF
HK$'000
FAT
cosT R
At 30 April 2019 RZZE—-—HhFEA="+H —
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 (note 2a) & R ERE S KR E LB F165EN T E
(Bt % 2a) 39,916
At 1 May 2019 RZZE—-NFhA—H 39,916
Additions NE 7,624
At 30 April 2020 R-E-ZEFWA=1+H 47,540
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT WERRE
At 30 April 2019 RZZE—-—AFHEA=1+H —
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 (note 2a) & X FERE B I 5 REEEIFE165E T2
(Kt 7#2a) 4,385
At 1 May 2019 R_Z—-—HhFRA—H 4,385
Provided for the year FREAE 23,936
Impairment loss recognised (note 15(a)) BHERREEIE (FE15a) 18,383
At 30 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFFWMA=+H 46,704
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 April 2020 R-E-_EFWMA=+H 836
At 1 May 2019 —hFRA—AH 35,531
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—ZE_-_ZFMA=1+HFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

16. FRAEEE @

HK$'000
FHET
Expense relating to short-term leases and other HEHEE RN EEMBREER
leases with lease terms end within 12 months of the 21658~ & X FEFR A EI#E 1218 A A
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 ERHMHEERBBHNRX 1,347
Variable lease payments not included in the KT AHEAGET=Z
measurement of lease liabilities (note) Z Al BT E N R (A E) 347
Lease expenses for the year FAREMK 1,694
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities BEREAGZASMS 19,866
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEERENE 2,174
Total cash flow for leases for the year FREERSR=REE 23,734

Note: Leases of retail stores contain the term of minimum monthly lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term and variable lease payment
that are based on certain percentage of sales of the retail stores if the
variable lease payment exceeds the minimum rent.

For both years, the Group leases various staff quarters, office,
warehouse and retail stores for its operations. The right-of-use
assets relate mainly to the leases of the retail stores. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed terms of between 2 and 3 years
and without extension and termination options.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the leases.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group has no commitment in respect of
short-term leases. The short-term lease expense incurred during
the year amounted to HK$1,347,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

17.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group does not provide residual value
guarantees in relation to leases arrangements. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group has no leases that are committed
but not yet commenced.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

16. F A REE E )

17.

R_Z_ZFWUA=1TH ABEY
ARHREELHEHE 2 NREEE
ReBHBARBENHEEETORE
RIS SN - T E 1% T 5 AN E ] K Al
R e

R-T_TEMA=+H A%EL
WEAMEMREHOAE

i 3E B 1R
TRUSIAEBROASTE R LFER

RrTEEERBEE/(AE) RH
28 :

Decelerated/

(accelerated)
Provision tax depreciation Tax losses Total
HE(hnEE)
BE HEHE BHEEE wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FAT FAT
At 1 May 2018 RZZE—NF
AH—H 349 1,675 — 1,924
Charged to profit or loss RE =R (349) (2,3095) 2,232 (422)
Reversal of opening deferred 8 fi 7 4 #) BR ¥ IR iE
tax assets resulting from HIEEERE
reassessment — (1,360) — (1,360)
At 30 Apriland 1 May 2019 R —ZT— h 4
MA=+HX
AH—H — (2,090) 2,232 142
(Charged)/credited to profit R 1EZ (1K), 5 A
or loss
Current year KEE 262 776 (776) 262
At 30 April 2020 R-E-ZF
BA=+8 262 (1,314) 1,456 404

E-BRZERARAT
“E-ZEER

145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE—Z-_ZTFMA=1+HIIFE

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 17. 3 IE B 18 ()
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBEBHER AEETHAREN
of approximately HK$113,709,000 (1.5.2019: HK$85,210,000) RKIEF 2 K &) FH %ﬁ BEEYAE
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has 113,709,000 L (ZFE — N F R A —
been recognised in respect of HK$8,827,000 (1.5.2019: H : 85,210,000/ JT ) MZEERE
13,528,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been #98,827,000 T(ZE— hE R A —
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses due to the H :13,528,000) M R IR LT IH & = °
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised ENEETERR f?:/ﬁ:ﬁr 37+ B0 A
tax losses are losses of HK$504,000 (1.5.2019: HK$504,000) that BRTIHEESEBERAELHREEE -8
will expire in 2024. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. E’\ - 2 Z VY 4F B By &9 &5 8 504,000 7% 7T

—FH A —H : 504,000/ 7T)
EEJr)\iEﬁEw%RIEJEﬂE o H th B8 Al
AR B4 -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible REmEHKR KEBH AR E
temporary differences of approximately HK$36,053,000 (1.5.2019: M 2 #8 %) A36,058,00008 T (= & —
HK$11,639,000), of which HK$1,906,000 (1.5.2019: HK$859,000) NWEEA—H 11,639,000/ 7t)  H
has been recognised as deferred tax asset. No deferred tax asset F1,906,0008 c(ZE— L FHA —
has been recognised in relation to the remaining deductible H : 859,000/ 0) lER BIEILFIEE
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be BE o AR A RE L R A FE R B AE LUK
available against which the deductible temporary differences can AR EREE5E Y EMERE
be utilised. HTIA R EREEEEENELTER
HEE -
18. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 1. RAFEFABEZNER
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 'E
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—BCRF —E-NF
BA=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial asset mandatorily measured BHIEANFEFAEBRTEDN
at FVPL: TREE -
Life insurance policy ANSRE 3,917 3,856
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

BE_T_TFOA=THLEFEER

18. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

As at 30 April 2020, the Group has one life insurance policy with
insurance company to insure a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Under the policy, the group entity is the beneficiary and
policy holder and the total insured sum is US$1,274,438 (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,941,000). The Group is required to pay a
single premium of US$514,800 (equivalent to HK$4,000,000) at
inception. The Group can, at any time, withdraw cash based on the
account value of the policy (“Account Value”) at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid plus
accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus any charges
made in accordance with the terms and conditions of the policy. If
withdrawal is made between the 1st to 15th policy years, there is a
specified amount of surrender charge deducted from the Account
Value. The insurance company will pay the Group variable return
per annum afterwards (with minimum guaranteed interest rate of
2.25% per annum) during the effective period of the policy.

18. gﬁ‘ FEHFAEZENT M

&)

e

R-_E-_ZTFNA=+H  AEED
BB ARG L —HABRE AKX
AR —ERBARIZ —BEEKR-
BREZRE SEEBAZZARR
EﬁﬁA R #8508 B51,274,4383 7T
(H8E  499,941,0007% 7T ) ° 7Zx & F 7
ﬂiﬁﬁﬁmiﬁ B R 514,800
£ 7r (#8272 4,000,000/8 7T) - A~ & E
AR AEMNRERFEA(RE
BEDEREDNR: MEFEAR
ERREBBEMNRGTHRINAREFE

BHIRERE H?k&ﬂﬂii?ﬁﬁ’ﬂ&ﬁ
ERET MRE1Z15EAREFH

I AGERFEETHKEES
BHRERRER -ZRRAFZEHR
REERPARNAEENAZFE
[B] ¥k (4F Z (R 58 F| &R & K 52.25%) °

19. CLUB MEMBERSHIP 10. B E

30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
mMAE=+H mA=+H
Cost 2N HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT

Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) Uk B — 5 B /B A =) BF B B A
(K17£33) 4,000 4,000

Club membership is stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss. For the purpose of impairment testing on club membership,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on fair value
less costs to sell which represents the second-hand market price
less cost of disposal and it is level 2 fair value measurement.

B2 a e R IR AR AE M E & B RE
BEIR SHEKLMeBETHE
A ATRE SRR A FERES
RA(FE—FHmSERBLERN)E
E-RERE_RATEAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z

BEMA=TEIFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. #E
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—BCRF —E-NF
B=+H mA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Merchandise for resale EE L 22,842 35,283

21.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$49,816,000 (2019: HK$112,744,000),
which included allowance for write-down of inventories recognised
of HK$5,114,000 for the year ended 30 April 2020 (2019: reversal
of allowance for write-down of inventories recognised of

HK$5,968,000).

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

HE_ZT-_ZTFUNA=-FTHILFE "
BRAEAZBFABHEXNRAZTFERK
7N £49,816,000% L (= F — L F:
112,744,000 L) - EHF BIEEBER
& & MR B 55,114,000 T( = &

—NAEFE CHIFEMRBEERD

5,968,000/ 7T) °

21. BWEZRE - HEW

MIER AN FRIE

30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
B=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Trade receivables FEUWE ZFIE
— third parties —$5=75 1,999 2,947
Rental and utilities deposits HekrAExEEse 8,915 10,020
Other receivables H th JE U R IE
— third parties —E=x 774 613
— arelated company (note 37) — —MEs R e (KiE37) = 116
Bills receivables (note (a)) FE W I (M 7% (a) 25,835 42,152
Prepayments (note (b)) TE /IR (M 3£ (b)) 83,348 89,280
Total trade receivables, other receivables and  JEULE 5 k18 - H {ih fE UG X 18
prepayments N IE FRIE B RE 120,871 145,128
Less: non-current portion — rental deposits ~ J§ : IEEIERE  H — M E % S (3,824) (7,513)
117,047 137,615
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 30 April 2020, bills receivables amounting to HK$25,287,000 (2019:
HK$42,060,000) were endorsed to suppliers as prepayments for
merchandises. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards because the bills were endorsed on a full recourse basis, the
Group continued to recognise these endorsed bills under bills receivables
and recognise corresponding obligations arising from endorsement of bills
included in other payables set out in note 24. These arrangements relate
to the agency services activities undertaken by the Group in the Trading
operating segment. No aging analysis of bills receivables is provided as
the bills receivables were related mainly to advance receipts from
customers and the fertilisers and other related products being procured
by the Group on behalf of the customers have not yet been delivered.

Prepayments as at 30 April 2020 mainly include prepayments to suppliers
for procurement of fertilisers raw materials, fertilisers and other related
products in China. The amounts prepaid to suppliers will be derecognised
when the products are directly delivered to customers by the suppliers.
91% (2019: 85%) of the amounts prepaid to suppliers were paid to the
related party as disclosed in note 37(i)(b). The management considered
that the credit risk in respect of the prepayments as at 30 April 2020 is
low based on the records of product deliveries from the suppliers to
customers and the deliveries made subsequent to 30 April 2020.

During the year ended 30 April 2019, there was write-off of prepayment of
HK$941,000 which were long outstanding despite the Group having
taken positive actions seeking to recover them.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

For the year ended 30 April 2020

21. ERE 5
IE K TS FE )

H

et

B 75 ¥R 2% B R ()

FA=+HILFE

HE_T—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
CREEE L)

II‘I-F

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z

BEMA=TEIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 21. EWE Z 1B Hith FEW
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS FIEREARE @

(Continued)

The trade receivables mainly comprise receivables from credit card
companies for retail sales and from wholesale customers. There
was no specific credit terms granted to those credit card
companies. The receivables due from credit card companies were
usually settled within 7 days. The Group’s credit terms granted to
wholesale customers generally ranged from 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date.

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies

ERESHBAITERERAEARA

RAIZEERIBFELSLERTE 2B
HRE -BEEDZSEEARQAFAREME
A EEER - BRERARARZR
B—RR7TERES - AEEE TR
EEZEEH—BNTHEZAHE
5F30&90H -

UNHEEEEER 2EERUINZE

other than the functional currencies of the relevant Group entities OBEsE S NEMEWFBERY W
are set out below: T

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

I 2t —T-NF

A=+H mA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

US Dollars e 2,478 2,281

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice dates.

DI o

BEREZEAHEINZEKES

IR BR R

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

—BC-RF —E-NF

A=+H WmA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTERT FAET

Within 30 days 30HA 1,873 2,843
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 2 73
61 to 90 days 61 HZ=90H 63 31
Over 90 days HB3#E90 H 61 -
1,999 2,947

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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22.

For the year ended 30 April 2020

. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

As at 30 April 2020, trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired amounted to HK$61,000 (2019: Nil).

The amounts outstanding on trade receivables that were written off
during the year ended 30 April 2019 were HK$1,790,000 in
aggregate. These amounts were written off after the Group had
taken positive actions seeking to recover them with no results.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 30 April 2020
and 2019 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing those bills
receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the
bills receivables (see note 21) and corresponding other payables (see
note 24). The bills receivables and the endorsement of bills
receivables relate to the Group’s Trading business. The significant
risks and rewards relating to these bills receivables will be
transferred after the products are directly delivered to customers by
the suppliers, when the bills have been fully settled. These financial
assets are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

21.

22.

BE—

—EFOA=FTHLEER

EWE S RE - HMEW
&

IR %ﬁﬁ&wﬁ E

oK %80 B sl Rk (B 2 FE U 3k TE B % (] 3T HA
WEEHNTLHEZEKS kgﬁﬁ
g -

R_Z_ZTFWUA=1TH EBHE

RBEZEWE Z I8 A£61,000%8 7T
—E-NFE)
REBE2E_ZET—NAFWNA=ZFTHILHF

B MEmERE ZHRBEBHAREER
18 A 51 51,790,000 7t » £ /K &= B IR
B 7 1% 17 B) = Sk U [0 5% & BRE 4B
% ZERAEDHME-

BEITREE

NTAREER_ZT_TFRZ
hi@ﬂ—+5@@&%ﬁiﬁL%
BEEEEZSRKREEMEETH
EEzemEE BRASETEE
EZERERWHRIEZERRAR R ER -
HESBERAERKRER(RME21) X448
FEE e FRIE (R M 51 24) 2 28R
HE - BEREBERERERSERAK
EECESEBEH HZEERWE
#‘“ﬁ‘ﬁﬁZEkﬂ M,\&@#&Hﬂ‘ﬁ/\FDD
mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ e EERER
—f%ﬁiﬁ%§°7%iﬂ§§
BW$EIZ@ B RS RO ok AR
ANFEFAEMEERE AR -

E-EEERERA
:g_gﬁiﬁ

s 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE T -_ZFNA=1+HILFE

22. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

As at 30 April 2020

2. HEESMEE @

R-ZEBE-_ZFEFMA=1+H

Bills receivables
endorsed to
suppliers with
full recourse
REEBRREE
mtEEEE W
EWEE
HK$’000

FTHER

Carrying amount of bills receivables
Carrying amount of obligations arising from
endorsement of bills

EWREZ REE
BEERSIBZATERAEE

25,287

(25,287)

Net position

FEAOR

As at 30 April 2019

i

—NWEFMA=+H

Bills receivables
endorsed to
suppliers with

full recourse
EEHMEBREE
M ERE S EH
FEWE &
HK$'000

FAT

Carrying amount of bills receivables
Carrying amount of obligations arising from
endorsement of bills

EWERZ REE
BEEBRSIBZAEEREE

42,060

(42,060)

Net position

FERAR

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
T AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 BHEeERREZEY

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from iR 17 45 88 120.001% £ 0.35% 2 3] 17

0.001% to 0.35% (2019: ranging from 0.13% to 0.35%) per THEEMNR(ZDZE—NLF:013%F
annum. 0.35%) T B °

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

—E-EH —E-NF

MA=+H MmA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Bank balances RITHE 22,118 22,419

Cash R& 52 64

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIA S 22,170 22,483

/|

24. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND 24. H % BEEXH -BEFZK

CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES H#aENAFIERE
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—E-EF —ZT-NEF
MA=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade payables (note (a)) BB 538 (Mt @)

— third parties —%=7 15,929 17,600
Accrued employee benefit expenses EirEERFMEX 527 699
Provision for reinstatement costs (note (b)) 1E 18 A A B 5 (F a# (b)) 1,136 1,206
Provision for onerous operating leases (note (c)) £ & 48 % M & % & (M35 () = 4,561
Other accruals and payables HibfEst B8 A Mk EN KA

— endorsement of bills (note 21) —EEBEWH21) 25,287 42,060

— third parties —%=7 2,767 3,533

— arelated company (note 37) — — s R (FiE37) - 5,654
Deferred income iR JE WA 303 —
Amount due to a director of a subsidiary (note (d)) JEN —RBIH B ARz — 2 E =

F (H1 £ (a) 2,134 2,134

Contract liabilities AR AR 61,613 62,529
109,696 139,876

Less: non-current portion o JERNHRER o (465) (2,068)
Current portion B HA &R 5> 109,231 137,808

E-BBRERERAF ’l 53
—ETEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

TENA=THILFE

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 &=

24. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND

CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
customers to arrange for the fertilisers and other related products
to be provided by the suppliers to the customers (the “Trading of
fertilisers”). The amount of advances is negotiated on a case by
case basis with the customers. During the year ended 30 April
2020, there was a decrease in contract liabilities of HK$62,134,000
which was included in the contract liabilities as at 30 April 2019 as
a result of completion of the services on arranging the Trading of
fertilisers. For the contract liabilities as at 30 April 2020, the entire
balances will be derecognised within twelve months from 30 April
2020 when the products are directly delivered to the customers by
suppliers.

Notes:

(@) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based on
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@ BEZHHZIZENEZFAKK

the invoice dates. DT o
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
S B —T-n%F
B=+H mA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within 30 days 30H A 463 3,506
31 to 60 days 31EB60H A 445 1,212
Over 60 days FBime0H 15,021 12,882
15,929 17,600

(b) Movements in the Group’s provision for reinstatement costs are as

) AEBEZEEXRABEEEDHOT
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follows:

30/4/2020 30/4/2019

—T-THF —T-hF

A=+H MA=+8

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT F#ET

At beginning of the year F1) 1,206 1,796
Additional provision during the year FAEINEE 33 408
Settlements/reversals during the year FRENBE (103) (998)
At end of the year FR 1,136 1,206

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



24. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() The provision for onerous operating leases represented the anticipated
unavoidable costs for fulfilling the onerous non-cancellable lease
agreements. The lease agreements were entered into ranging from 2 to 3
years, the last of which will fall due on 31 July 2022. The provision amount
would be reduced upon the payment of the remaining rental charges.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE
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Flert e BRERD
Movements in the Group’s provision for onerous operating leases are as AREFBEEREHEREEZEHNT ¢
follows:
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—E-EF —E-NF
A=+H mA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At end of last year REXR 4,561 2,115
Adjustment to the right-of-use assets upon RAB BN BHREELF16RE AR
adoption of HKFRS 16 FRAEEE (4,385) -
At beginning of the year R F ) 176 2,115
Provision during the year FREE = 4,561
Release of provision upon payment of rental YN BRERRER
charges (176) (2,115)
At end of the year NGEEN - 4,561

(d) Amount due to the director of a subsidiary of the Company is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

25. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMA=1+HILFE

26. BANK LOANS 26. RITE X
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—E-EF —E-NF
A=+H WmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revolving term loan BIREHEN
— Unsecured, with effective interest rate of 4.78% — R _Z_ZTF M A=+
per annum as at 30 April 2020 (Note 1) HEER BEBRFHX
B478% (Kt 1) 4,000 —
— Secured, with effective interest rate of 4.58% — R - T F 1/ =+
per annum as at 30 April 2020 (Note 2) BEER BRFEMNE
#4.58% (Hi:#2) 2,000 -
6,000 -
Account payable financing loan, secured, with N_ZT_TFNA=+THE
effective interest rate of 3.98% per annum as at B F F| & 45£3.98% 2 A E R
30 April 2020 (Note 2) A& B SR E T RIE (ffiE2) 1,673 -
Bank overdraft, secured, with effective interest RZE-ZEFMNA=+HE
rate of 3.75% per annum as at 30 April 2020 BERIR E3.75% 2 BHER
(Note 2) RITE X (H7E2) 659 —
8,332 -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans, which were AEERTERZEEBENETHE
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and containing a repayable on &@?Hz % SKEEKER THEERQF
demand clause, approximated to their fair values. The applicable BHREE —E-EFWMA=+A8H"
interest rates of the respective bank loans ranged from Hongkong BRARTT AZ BRAMNEREBRT
InterBank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”) plus 2.13% to 2.85% per annum [ EFE <r§ BERTRERE] NF
as at 30 April 2020. F#E2.13% £2.85% T 55 ©

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R AR M A (8D

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_Z-_ZFMA=1+H|FE

26. BANK LOANS (Continued) 26. ﬁﬁc‘?i' E ;"X (&)
As at 30 April 2020, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of R-ZZBE-_ZEZEFEWMARA=+H ' K&
HK$24,020,000 (2019: HK$24,020,000) for overdrafts and loans. EHEEYIRER BT E L
Unused facilities as at the same date were HK$15,688,000 (2019: /24,020,000 (= & — L F:
HK$24,020,000). The banking facilities were granted to the 24,020,000/ ;L) e R B 2 X8 A &
subsidiaries of the Company and were subject to an annual review. & /15,688,000 (=& — L F !

24,020,000/ 7T) - RITRE R T A
NAIMBATE  WRETFEER-

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured and guaranteed by the BHE_Z-_ZFWMA=+H K&

followings as at 30 April 2020: RRITTEREAUTERMRE

Note 1: BaEt -

a. Unlimited personal guarantees given by a director of a subsidiary of the a. HMARAR —RHKWNBARMN —REEIR
Company; and HEEmBEAER: &

b. Unlimited cross guarantees given by the subsidiaries of Company as b. KA BABERAERARENE
borrowers. R XER

Note 2: BfsEo -

a. HK$15,500,000 plus interest and other charges of personal guarantees a. 15,500,000/ TN EF B R EME R AR
given by a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and AREl—HKHBAR —ZEZRMHEM

AER: &

b. Assignment of life insurance policy of a director of a subsidiary of the b. wZEARAQNG —BHBAT —RBRESEZ

Company. AERBE -

E-ERZERERAR ’l 57
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE-_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HILFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRINTAARRE B R REFB S ®R
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current reporting SR E1AIR B RN ALEHEEE
period and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16: BEZRGBAENOHBER

Present value Present value of
Minimum lease of minimum ~ minimum lease

Minimum lease payments lease payments
payments 1 May 2019 payments 1 May 2019

30 April 2020 (Note) 30 April 2020 (Note)
RIEHE

REBENK REHRE 3B E
REHEMNHK —T-AF FREE —E-NF
—EEF HA—H —EEF HA—H

mA=+H (Hfat) mA=+AH (Ktt)

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FTET TER FAT

Within 1 year —FR 20,297 21,139 19,424 19,287

After 1 year but within 2 years — A BT BIBH E 5,610 16,598 5,444 16,019

After 2 years but within 5 years "4 A BT BB A E 714 2,778 706 2,740

Total minimum lease payments  #x {& f & 1 71 42 58 26,621 40,515 25,574 38,046
Total future interest expenses 7 38 7| 2.5 5z 42 58 (1,047) (2,469)
Present value of lease liabilites & & &R E 25,574 38,046
Amount due within 1 year R—FREHz R (19,424) (19,287)
Amount due after 1 year R—FREBze8 6,150 18,759

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective Wit AEBR_ZTE—NLFRA—BRAKL

approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 May 2019 to recognise BETRBEBEEVAREREEMBRE

lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as HEAFE165E L RHIYIAAEE » AR HE

operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 30 April BHEEREESTLENEI7THR L ES

2020 has not been restated. Further details on the impact of the transition KEHEMHERENHEEaGE - R

to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2a. TFNA=+tHZHEBRENTESE

5o RN BEEREWBIRELERE16
SR ENE— SR FE2a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

EEPN A =+HIEFE

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #ZE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. & 7
Number of
shares  Share capital
ik - ¢=| &N
’000 HK$'000
i TR
Ordinary shares of par value HK$0.01 each SREEN BT LB
Authorised EE
At 1 May 2018, 30 April 2019 and RZE—-—NFHRA—H"
30 April 2020 —E-NAFMNA=+H
MZBZEFMA=1+H 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1 May 2018, 30 April 2019 and RZE-—NFHRA—HB "
30 April 2020 ZE-NFMNA=TH
R—ZB-ZFMAB=1+H 800,000 8,000

29

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs or
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The qualifying employees in the PRC of the Group are members of
a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

29. R IKEF 58l

ERBEMHRRETE

AEEREEMARERERRY
mHEAEE B ZEERRE
AR ZEERE BAEEZE
ErHREE ASETARHEBET
¥ B 2 5% 3k & % 1,50078 7T A & 8 #
o MR B IR AR R K -

AEBERFEZAEREEHZ2MT
HABERMELRIFZBEZRERARSA
B-AEEAREIFHRAZEE
Fe B ) AR R 5t BB R A A AR R
P 5K IR o B A 5 18 B S OR K & T
BBz EHEREEZHRK

E-BRZERARAT
“E-ZEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$1,381,000
(2019: HK$1,754,000) represent contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option schemes

Pursuant to the board resolution passed on 4 January 2018, the
Board resolved to grant 80,000,000 share options (the “Share
Option Plan”) in total to employees and business associates of the
Company (the “Grantees”), subject to acceptance of the Grantees,
to subscribe for a total of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company. The Share Option Plan was
approved by the Shareholders by way of poll at the Extraordinary

General Meeting held on 25 January 2018.

The share options granted under the Share Option Plan were not
accepted by the Grantees. As a result, no share options were
recognised as granted and outstanding as at 30 April 2020 and

2019.
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1,754,000/ 7T) - E /AR EBR A&
HIM M a8 2 1K -

R RR S

DR 2B RES

BER_ZT-—N\F-—AOEBEBRZ
BEZeRER EECHRRAARY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R AR M A (8D

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZ_—_ZE_FTFINA=+HILFE

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EREE
As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any material E/\\ E-ETER_FE-NFEFNA=+
capital commitments. AR BB EE ﬂ BREARFGE -
32. OPERATING LEASES 2. R&EHE
The Group as lessee: KEBEREABEA:
Year Ended
30/4/2019
HE
—T-NEF
mA=+H
IEFE
HK$'000
FET
Minimum lease payments paid and recognised asan ~ ERDNEHER AR I 2 LHERK
expense under operating leases during the year HER® 32,822
Contingent rent gARMEE 2,044
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RIEHR AEERE TR
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating REFANEREEMNZZERENR
leases which fall due as follows: AEENT
30/4/2019
—E-NF
mA=+H
HK$'000
FAET
Within one year —F K 24,354
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEFRF(EEHEMT) 19,403
43,757

E-BBRERERAF ’l 6"
—ETEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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32.

33.

B B 5 R R P R ()

TENA=THILFE

OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held
under leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 May 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see note 2a). From 1 May
2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in note 3, and the details
regarding the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in note
27.

The office premises in the PRC are rented from the PRC
government for free.

ACQUISITION OF A CLUB MEMBERSHIP
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

In April 2019, Treasure Ascent International Limited (“Treasure
Ascent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100% equity interest in Fulham Corporation Limited (“Fulham”)
from Mr. Lam who is one of the Previous Controlling Shareholders
and a director of Treasure Ascent. The principal activity of Fulham
is holding a yacht club membership in Hong Kong. The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed did not constitute a business
combination as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and
therefore, the acquisition was accounted for as assets acquisition.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_ZE-_TFMNA=1+HILFE

33. ACQUISITION OF ACLUB MEMBERSHIP 33. ZBWHE —BHE A %
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MELBEERAMEE
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A k& &

SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction were THHPFWBEEENAEEEN
as follows: o
HK$’000
FHET
Intangible asset — club membership mEE - BN 4,000
Motor vehicle RE 1,988
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEEY 146
Other payable — amount due to a director of subsidiary B b fiE -t 3818 — N — R B A & 2
—BEFIE (2,134)
Net assets of the subsidiary acquired Frit BB A RN EE E5E 4,000
Consideration RE 4,000
Total consideration satisfied by cash consideration paid B &K EXNOERE 4,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEREENBRE KL FE:
Cash consideration paid BEfNREeRE (4,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WENReRBESEEY 146
(3,854)
Pursuant to the agreement entered into between Treasure Ascent BIETESEMEET I EBINE
and Mr. Lam in relation to the acquisition of equity interest in ERENHE(HE) S8 M
Fulham (the “Agreement”), Treasure Ascent granted to Mr. Lam AT RMREEEZHERER+F
the call option which is exercisable by Mr. Lam during the period of NITEHREE - RIE2EE HA 4 -
ten years from the date of the Agreement. Under the call option, MEEBEEERESUTEREL
Mr. Lam shall have the right to require Treasure Ascent to sell E FE100%IRE  WHEAERSE
100% equity interest in Fulham to him at market value to be ER B L ERTE 1T -

assessed by an independent valuer jointly appointed by the parties.

E-BBRERERAF ’l 63
—ETEER
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the bank loans disclosed in note 26, amount due to ultimate
holding company and lease liabilities, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with the share
capital and bank loans. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption of
existing debts.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

35a. Categories of Financial Instruments

M. EXEBERE

AEENEAEREABRASEEZ
EROEFBELE REEBELE
BRESERRARRER AW RS
REH - AEE 2 ERBREAEFIRE

REED -

AEBZEAGERBRAE HPE
SR E20REBEZRITER BN &
RERAFAFRARMEEBEHNRR
TREASEEM) RARRER AR
EEm MARAAEARGLEEZE
RO BITHRA R -

ARABEETHRIEAERE - AR
AEERERTEBETERELK
ARBEZBERARRITERBBZ
R REEBREARAEFT ZEZ
#OBBBRTHR MEEHXED
REEBRFEEBERERS-

35. &I A
ba. EEMITEZER

Financial assets ERMEE
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—Z2-%F% —F-NF
BA=+H mMA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKASE S EE 33,858 26,159
Financial assets at FVOCI BEAFES AEME2KE
NEFEE 25,835 42,152
Financial asset at FVPL WAFEEF AR
PREE 3,917 3,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35a.

35b.

BE_T_TFMA=THIFE

35. €@ T B @)

Categories of Financial Instruments (Continued) 3a. @ T B ZEA @)
Financial liabilities TRAasE
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—BCRF —E-NF
mMA=+A mA=+A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T
Financial liabilities TREBE
At amortised cost IR P AN S BR 74,046 80,200
Lease liabilities HEBE 25,574 -
Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35b.

Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
at FVOCI, financial assets at FVPL, bank loans, trade and
other payables, amount due to ultimate holding company,
amount due to a director of a subsidiary and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

giﬁlﬁﬁ‘éfiﬁﬁ%&ﬁ

AEBZTESRTABES
SREMEER RehkAeF
BY BAFEFAEMEEEK
aMEMEE BRFEFAR
HENEMEE RTERXR EH
R Bl A 5RR - A SRR
R A FRIE - BN — B R A
Z-REEFRALRBEAEB - Z
EEMIAZHFBRENAES
Miar-ZZemI A HARR
BREMSER(E ¥R R & X
R - FERBRERBESRE
B BRABE L EFRR 2 BRRH
REX-BEEBEERERZS
[ B+ A B IR K% By 3 B 280 BR X
HE R -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @l T & um)

35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bb. HEEBEEEERK

160

Policies (Continued)

Currency risk

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Group undertakes
certain sales in United States dollars (“USD”) (2019: USD),
which is the currency other than the functional currencies of
the respective group entities. The functional currency of these
group entities is Renminbi (2019: Renminbi) and their trade
and other receivables are denominated in USD. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movements of the foreign currency rates. The Directors
conduct periodical review of foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exchange exposure

should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

R @)

B
REEZE-_ZE-_FTFWNA=+H
IFFE - AEENAET(ER]
(ZZE—NF:En)(HREHA
SEERREEEUAININZEE)
ETETHE RSEEER
W EER/RARB(ZE—N
FARB)RBESENEGRE
fib FE MU FRIB T AR LT B « A&
ERETNERIIEEXEZHE
1B H HME @ B o B 5 HHME R B
ETEHRNTRLERZEYH
HE R SME @R -

REREAMAKE NI EE

denominated monetary assets at the respective reporting HMEBEENEmENT :
dates are as follows:
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—RCEHE —E-NF
A=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT TET
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A W RIA 2,478 2,281
Sensitivity analysis BRE D

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2019: 5%) increase in the functional currency of the
relevant group entities, Renminbi, relative to respective foreign
currency, USD. The sensitivity analysis includes only foreign
currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2019: 5%)
change in the foreign currency rates. If the functional currency
of the relevant group entities strengthen/weaken 5% against
respective foreign currency, the Group’s post tax loss for the
year would be increased/decreased by approximately

HK$93,000 (2019: HK$86,000).
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE—Z_-_ZTEWWA=+HIIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @l T A um)

35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bh.BEEABEERFERK

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, and bank loans. It is the
Group’s policy to keep a portion of its financial assets and
financial liabilities at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and HIBOR arising from the Group’s
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances and bank loans. The analysis is prepared
assuming the variable-rate bank balance and bank loans
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50-basis point on bank
loans (2019: 50-basis point) and 10-basis point on bank
balances (2019: 10-basis point) increase or decrease in the
interest rates is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest risk internally to key management personal and
represent the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If the interest rate on bank balances had been 10 basis point
(2019: 10 basis point) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post tax loss for the year
would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$17,000 (2019: HK$18,000).

& ()

A = 3
AEBERIZZ BN KRG B ZIRTT
EHLBTERHGRSREN
KRB  AKRBEZBRRRTH
EEXRFAE-—FNeREERSE
AR A2 FEFRERRE
ERE-ARBEZRERENE
BT RERRAKE LB T
BZEREEZRITEBRREER
RITAEFRBE ZMEEEF -

TONBRE DT TR IBE AR AN E
B % F AR E 2 RITHER
MIRTTER A ERRIERME
FeoBESMBERNFEHRRK
BRI B ARG B CIRITE
BEBTERREFRNREAM
e - AEEANTREEZEEA
BIER 7 WITERF KRB TR
FS0MEE B (= ZF — L4 : 501@
HEE)RRITEBRDEABI0EE
(- NF10EEZ) L
S TRAREE WITREEERE
HAE BB ESEBATECT
=

MIEIT ST EF N K10ME
A (ZT—NF10@EER)
MmATE M EHITE  BIAX
SEFAZREBEBEERD,
m&917,0008 L (ZF — L F:
18,0008 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE—Z-_ZTFMA=1+HIIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. €@t T A um)
35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bb. HEEBEEEERK
Policies (Continued) R (#)
Interest rate risk (Continued) R = & b ()
As at 30 April 2020, if the interest rate on bank loans had RZZE_ZTFWRA=FH " WiE
been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables were TERME EFH T K0 E
held constant, the Group’s post tax loss for the year would B MATEEMES G IE
have increased/decreased by approximately HK$35,000 (2019: A REBFRNZFEEIESGE
Nil). /A #935,0008 T (ZE—h
FfE)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FE Rk RRE G
The carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial NG BRRARINESE R
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial SREEZEREEEEAETRZA
position best represent the Group’s maximum exposure to EERM MXSHAREETE
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due T - EHEERREERAREEAZ
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties. BfF5 B 5k
In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated AmEREEERR AEED
a team responsible for the determination of credit limits and ZRk—XBEBEEEFEERSE
credit approvals. REE#Z -
The Group’s current assets as at 30 April 2020 includes RZE_TFWA=1+H A&
prepayments of approximately HK$75,257,000 (2019: B rBEERERAER—E
HK$73,360,000) paid to a major supplier of the Group as TEHERYMOBEBNRELY
disclosed in note 21(b) and note 37(). The management 75,257,000 (= & — JLF
considered the credit risk in respect of the prepayments as at 73,360,000 7T) + BT sE21(b) &
30 April 2020 is low. MaEs7hiEE - BEEERAHER
ZE-EFMA=FTRHZENRK
HEBR EERRBRRIE-
Maximum exposure and year-end staging EoRBRERDIEERDE
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TEREBERERD EE\B{% Bl
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, REESENGESEERER B
which is mainly based on past due information unless other BB AN NER ESH
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- BRI TREBUBEBER
end staging classification as at 30 April. ERMUMAZ+HZFEFRSEESD
HAEM o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B SRR M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. €@t T A um)
35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bb. HEEBEEEERK
Policies (Continued) R ()
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) B &k &R E & @)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) EoEREFERIEEDE
(#8)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for 2y e ABEETEHEZEER
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment. FENEREENAE®RME-
As at 30 April 2020 R-ZE-ZEFWA=1+H
12-month
ECLs Life time ECLs
1218 A
FEER 2HEHGEEER
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

E-BR E-BR EZHR a1k %

HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERT TET TERT TET TET

Trade receivables (note (a))  FEULE 5 318
(B (@) — - - 1,999 1,999
Financial assets included in 5t A H {th fE g ZIB &)
other receivables (note (b)) & &L & E (K3 (b)

— Normal — 15 35,524 — — - 35,524

— Doubitful — A & - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents IR & RIRE& EEBY

(note (c)) (K it(c) 22,170 - - - 22,170

57,694 - - 1,999 59,693

E-ERZERERAR ’l 69
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e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE-_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €@ T H @
35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bb. HEEBEEEERK
Policies (Continued) R (#)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) B &k &R E & @)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) EoEREFERIEEDE
(&)
As at 30 April 2019 RZE-NFMHA=+H
12-month
ECLs Life time ECLs
121 A 78 5
EEEE 2HEHEEER

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

F-RE ZE-BRE E=RR GE97A
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FERT FHET FET FET TAR

Trade receivables (note (a) W E 5318
(Hf5t(a) - - - 2,947 2,947
Financial assets included in -~ &t A H 4 [ Ut Z B 69
other receivables (note (b)) 4 B & & (K13 (b))

— Normal - % 42,881 - - — 42,881
— Doubtful — A& - - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIRESZEY
(note (c)) (K&t (c) 22,483 - - - 22,483
65,364 — — 2,947 68,311

Notes: Hiat -

(@  Trade receivables primarily consist of customers from wholesales @ EUESREFZBEREEESH
of watches in Hong Kong and trading of fertilisers in the PRC. The FEHENPREEHESHENE
Directors monitor their balances on an ongoing basis. In addition, FHBHRB EEFEELRS
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model M sk AN AEBIRESRE
upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually. Trade MR ELAEIE®E S &8
receivables in connection with these customers are also with good FEREHEEEEBERENETER
credit quality and no past due history. In addition, the management BMET G BEEZEEPZEIR
of the Group considers these assets are short-term in nature and BHFRENAESEETR LI E
the probability of default is negligible. In this regard, the Directors BEENES - WIh REEE
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. BERAZSEEBEBME

BEAOBEABEE DAL - UL
EOEERARLARENEERR
ERIER D
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e B SRR M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @l T A um)

35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bb. HEEBEEEERK

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The credit quality of the financial assets included in other
receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to
be “doubtful”.

(c) The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because cash are placed
with reputable banks with external credit rating of at least “A”
assigned by an international credit-rating agency or state owned.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

During the vyear, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$59,005,000 (2019: HK$26,893,000) and as of 30 April
2020, had accumulated losses of HK$124,213,000 (2019:
HK$65,204,000). These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and hence, its
ability to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

E4C )

= & BB KO E ¥ @)
BERERBRERDEEDE
(1)

et - (%)

b EBRAERMELFENERMAEE
TEAPRIBENBTRZEE
REENEERRAVLSERE
HEAKREEN EEEEERA
[E&E]- BRI ZEEREEW
EEERBRIARR]-

© "RBELEERBRER G ZHAR
ReNERRESEREEFR
L TELIARINBEERF
BROEERFNRTHBEARR

e

REBE SRR

RERBRBESERE AKH
EERTYHRERASFEMH
FEEEBRSENRAKEEY
EBEERRES MRERES R
ERPHFENKT -EEESR
RRTEROERER - LR
BT ERRL -

FR - AEBELEEBER
59,005,000 L (= T — N F:
26,893,000 7t ) K A = F =
TENMAZ+RH 2 EEAR
124,213,000 L (Z & — L 5F
65,204,000 7T) - Z F 15N KA
GhEAEFEREEFELCERN
DEEMFEEREEEKBRPE
REERBEAGBRENZIESR
ZERTHBPREE-

E-BRZERARAT
“E-ZEER

171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE_-_Z_ZTFWA=1+HILFE

172

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The

directors of the Company have given careful

consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group has sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group will be able to continue to operate as a going
concern in the foreseeable future, after taking into
consideration the following factors:

As at 30 April 2020, the Group had total banking
facilities of approximately HK$15,688,000 (2019:
HK$24,020,000), which has not been drawn down as
bank borrowings.

The ultimate holding company has confirmed that it will
provide financial support to the Group to finance its
operations for at least twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and not to recall the loan provided
to the Group until the Group has the ability to repay.

The management closely monitors the Group’s financial
performance and liquidity position. The management
has been implementing measures to control operating
costs including negotiating with the landlords for rental
reduction, a salary reduction scheme for management,
the minimization of operating costs and closure of loss-
making retail outlets when the relevant lease expires.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE—Z_-_ZTEWWA=+HIIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. €@t T A um)

35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Bh.BEEABEERFERK
Policies (Continued) - 4¢ )
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBE SR @
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAVWAEFBIETAE SR AE
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has MBS TANEERASI - Z&RIR
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of AIZERAEBNRANZRRE BN
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the cHEEAMRBRERERE -
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a LTEE EFEERERKERER
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time RIRTERDNAZRERER
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to mAMmIRITES R EEITHER
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non- EHREN HMIETESRBE
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed MEEBB ST R ERENEE
repayment dates. AERE -
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To TEHIWNMEEASHRETRE
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the WABERERZFEFE  BIRE,
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at REeBEREHRZANERBZFESE
the end of the reporting period. H e

More than  More than  More than
Lessthan 3monthsto  1yearto 2yearsto Undiscounted Carrying

Financial liabilities cREE Ondemand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5years cash flows amount
3EAME 1FE0E 280k RER
REXR DHH3EAR BF B2f Z58 BERE BRMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTET TET TAT FTET FTHET FTET
As at 30 April 2020 R=—Z=-%ZF
A=+H
Trade and other payables & 5 & & i JiE
B - 44,510 - - - 44,510 44,510
Amount due to a director of i - — & i B 2 7]

a subsidiary 2 BEEHE 2,134 = = = = 2,134 2,134
Bank loans RITER 8,332 - - - - 8,332 8,332
Amount due to ultimate e RAIER DA

holding company A 19,070 - - - - 19,070 19,070
Lease liabilities HEAR - 7,240 13,057 5,610 714 26,621 25,574

29,536 51,750 13,057 5,610 714 100,667 99,620
As at 30 April 2019 R-ZB-hEF
A=+H
Trade and other payables & 5 Jx & i JiE
RIE — 69,446 — — — 69,446 69,446
Amount due to a director of & i — & ff /& 22 7)

a subsidiary 2 REENIE 2,134 - - - - 2,134 2,134
Amount due to ultimate B REERRA

holding company A 8,620 — — — — 8,620 8,620

10,754 69,446 — — — 80,200 80,200

E-ERERERR A 'I 73
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. &M I AEwm
35b. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and Bo. HEREBEEBEERK
Policies (Continued) R ()
Liquidity risk (Continued) R E T AR @
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified REBRZ-ZZE-—LEFRA AR
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at REIETHBIENRERE S
1 May 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases WSS 2RI E 165 R A A1)
which were previously classified as operating leases under BHE LNEREBATREELSS
HKAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative information FTERIFEITHR OB AKSENERN
is not restated. See note 2a. HERENHEEAR BELA
FohBERNTEEY 2R
FF2a -
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included BEEREREREXNRITE
in the “on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. HET A EXEIBE DR E K
As at 30 April 2020, the aggregate undiscounted principal ZRHBEENN - RZFE_FF N
amount of these bank loans amounted to HK$8,332,000 (2019: A=1+8 ZER{TERZ KB
Nil). Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the RAR £ B % 58,332,000 L (=
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks will TE-NF E) REELREE
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate 2R EFERARITTK
repayment. The table below analyses the Group’s bank loans AREETHEERABERZME
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining o TRBEHBRSHREEN
period at the end of reporting period to the contractual FEAR 2T HR - &8 Eﬁ 7 E
maturity date. HAMAREAERZ RITERE
(2R
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

e B SRR M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

35. €@ T B @)

Bb. M EREBREEEERK
E4C )

Liquidity risk (Continued) T E SRR @
Maturity Analysis — Bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments
FMBo M- AAARERERBIXARBETEERN
RITER
Less than 1-2 2-5 Over Undiscounted Carrying
1 year years years 5years cash flows amount
KRR
LPME 1E2F 2E5F 5FULE RERE KHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERXT TERT TERT TAER TET TERT
30 April 2020 —EZEH
B=+H 8,344 — — — 8,344 8,332
30 April 2019 —E—NF
mA=+H — — — — — —

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

W% E B M Rt B2 BB ERN I,
EHREEZMEXMGIFER A
EXFREBRIFTESRE RS

E-BRZERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE—Z-_ZTFMA=1+HIIFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 6. METHELENAGHR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TREIANEFREEHELEZCAEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash HEHS BIEHSMIIERSEH -
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for MEETHELAABAECEAERES
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the NEeERERPHERSREHSEA
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from AKRBREREBEE P ELAME T E
financing activities. ErReREZBE
Amount due
to ultimate
holding Lease Convertible
company liabilities Bank loans note Total
BNEE
ZERAR CIE:Y:

RE HEAEE ®RTER B e
HK$'000  HKEO000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TR TET TET TET

At 30 April 2019 RZE-NFHA=H 8,620 - - - 8,620
Impact on initial application & X ERE BB KRS
of HKFRS 16 (note) ERF16R AT E
(ft&t) - 38,046 - - 38,046
At 1 May 2019 RZZE—NFRA—H 8,620 38,046 — — 46,666
Financing cash flows BERSME
Proceeds FTiS 58 10,450 - 8,332 - 18,782
Repayments BN - (19,866) — - (19,866)
Interests paid BARFIE - (2,174) (152) - (2,326)
Non-cash changes: EREEH :
Increase in lease liabiliies 3] S H A M EHMHEE
from entering into new BEEM
leases — 7,394 — — 7,394
Finance costs & i N — 2,174 152 — 2,326
At 30 April 2020 R-BE-ZEENA=1+H 19,070 25,574 8,332 - 52,976
At 1 May 2018 R-ZZE—NFHEA—H — 827 — 5,806 6,633
Financing cash flows BEHESRE
Proceeds P15 A 8,620 - 39,200 - 47,820
Repayments B — (827) (39,200 (5,806) (45,833)
Interests paid 2FA - ) (70) (52) (128)
Non-cash changes: RS ED:
Finance costs & R — 6 70 52 128
At 30 April 2019 RZE-NEFHHA=1H 8,620 - - - 8,620
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B SRR M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—_Z-_ZFMA=1+H|FE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 6. MEEFHELENEGBHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (&)
(Continued)
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 May 2019 using the Kot AREBR_Z—AFREA—BRALK
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative EBEMERENREREAMERS
information is not restated (see note 2a). HERIZEA165E o BIELL 5% LB E R

EBEH (2R ME2a)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BB ARG

() In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed () BmzEEAMBRREMBITS R

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during B SEERIN RAFE

the year, the Group entered into the following transactions AEBHEBEB A ETTUTR

with related parties: Z

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Commission income received from a related B A7 WEEE A

party (note (a)) (K7t (@) 1,039 570
Commission income received from a related B B 5 W EVE & Y A

party (note (b)) (K132 b)) 10 297
Commission income (note (b)) e WA (b)) 9,417 9,686
Commission income (note (c)) BE& WA (B ) 9,185 5,626
Advances from ultimate holding company KEREIERANT 28K 10,450 8,620

E-ERZERERAR ’l 7 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z

BEMA=TEIFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the

reporting period:

37. BB R F @)

() IE))

T BN E R AREE

2020 2019
—E-SE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Amount due from a related party (note (a)) FE e Ba s 5 5k I8 (K it (@) - 116
Advance receipt from a related party (note (b)) K & Ba Bt 77 8978 UL 23X
(K17t ) (12) (13)
Advance receipt from a related party (note (a)) 3K & B8 B 5 1) 78 U 3k 1B
(K7 (a) (725) —
Prepayment to a related party (note (b)) FRAEE T S A FE S B
(Bt 37 (b)) 75,257 73,360
Prepayment to a related party (note (c)) A BE B 5 A RO FE A A
(Bt 7% (c)) 418 1,578
Amount due to a related party (note (c)) FE 1 R 5 3R IE (KT it () - (5,554)
Amount due to ultimate holding company FEAS S 4% 1 % A R FR IR (19,070) (8,620)

Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. Receivables and
payables from/(to) other related parties were trade nature
balances, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/(to) related
parties approximated to their fair values and are denominated
in Renminbi (2019: Renminbi) except for amount due to
ultimate holding company which is denominated in HK$ (2019:
HK$).

&S B AR R B A B R IR B R I
R THEBERRBERKEERE K
Y, (R A=F) At B Bk 77 &) J M 3%
ERENFRBEHAEESEE 2
e BER TR REEXR
1838 - U (FE) BB 75 3RO
MEEEEEQRFERE LA
ARB(ZZ—NF: AR®)F
B RN REERABREN
BT(ZT—NEF: BL)E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)  (continued)

Notes:

@

The related party is an entity which is controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company. The Group had entered
into arrangements for the purchases of crude glycerine from
independent third party suppliers to be sold to the related party.
During the year, the invoiced amounts of the sales of these
products to the related party amounted to approximately
HK$4,007,000 (2019: HK$7,044,000). As the Group is considered
to be acting as agent in respect of these purchase and sale
transactions, the Group recognised commission income of
HK$1,039,000 (2019: HK$570,000) in respect of these
transactions involving the related party for acting as agent in the
sales and purchases of crude glycerine.

The related party is an entity of which the controlling shareholder is
a cousin of the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder. The
Group had entered into arrangements for the purchases of
fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from independent
suppliers to be sold to the entity. During the year, such sales to the
related party amounted to approximately HK$109,000 (2019:
HK$2,815,000). As the Group is considered to be acting as agent
in respect of these purchase and sale transactions, the Group
recognised commission income of HK$10,000 (2019:
HK$297,000) for acting as agent in the sales and purchases of
fertilisers and other related products.

In addition, the Group had entered into arrangements for the
purchases of fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from
the related party to be sold to independent third party customers.
Such purchases from the related party for the year amounted to
approximately HK$310,501,000 (2019: HK$316,629,000). As the
Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of these
purchase and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission
income of HK$9,417,000 (2019: HK$9,686,000) for acting as
agent in the sales and purchases of fertilisers and other related
products.

e

For the year ended 30 April 2020

B 75 ¥R 2% B R ()

37. BB TR @

(i)

(#&)

o

(@

ZEAE T AR A A &R
FEFNEB - AEEREBL
B RERE BT AR
B ZEEMEE T ZEH
T AFEIHE FZEAE A NZ
FLEMZFHAESFEIEL4,007,000
BIL(Z T — N F 1 7,044,000
)  BRAEERZEEER
SEERAREANTE WAEEH
EB S Rz @7 Mz S EEH
BEMREBAMBROMESEA
£1,039,0008 L (Z & — N F:
570,000/ 7T) °

ﬁi@@ﬁ?ﬁ%_ﬁfﬁﬂ H {7 BS A%
ECWNUN m&kh%mi
%°$%E%E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
REREAGEZIERGIZEE
T ZERHEETFZER-
REEHETHRBHIOZSHE
& HEE4109,0008 L (=T — N
& 12,815,000/ 7T ) © A K&
ERZEEERHIWERABREA
TE WAKEERZEENK
HiAEEREENREAMNE
WE A2 WA A10,000% T (=
T — L4+ 297,000/87C) °

BN - REE IR B & A5 =
EBREREAERSEERETILA
B ZEERBEEFBILE
—HEP -AFEABEHNZ
£ IR B £ & Z 4310,501,00078

7T (= F — L F : 316,629,000
L) HRAEERZZTEER

SERABREATE WAEE
ERZERMLEMEBEHEERE
EOREAMERODBS WA
A9,417,0008 T(ZF — L& -
9,686,000/ 7T) °

E-BEREREAERA
gt Sfﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE-_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)  (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

The Group had entered into arrangements for the purchases of
fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from a related
party, which is controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company, to be sold to independent third party customers.
Such purchases from the related party for the year amounted to
approximately HK$213,365,000 (2019: HK$186,892,000). As the
Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of these
purchase and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission
income of HK$9,185,000 (2019: HK$5,526,000) for acting as
agent in these sales and purchases of fertilisers and other related
products.

(i) Compensation of key management

37. BB R F @)

(i)

(#8)
g3

©

C(4)

REBHRBE —RB@EHH(AEQ
AEREERBRRES)RBRE
LEARSERART L HBER -
ZERPHBEFRBIE=FF
FP-AFEEBHBINZSHE
% B ¥ 49213,365,0008 T (= &
— L4 : 186,892,000/ 7T ) ° M
REAEERZEEERIPRA
REATE BWAEREARZSE
fER REMABEMEENRIE
A i B R 84 & U A 49,185,000
BL(ZZF — N F 1 5526,0004%
JT) ©

(i) TEEBEAEHH

personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BEERHMEFEEEABRAF
management during the year was as follows: EARREFBMOT :
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Salaries, bonus, other allowances and e JEAT - HAh)ZBE R
benefits in kind BEYH R 5,432 6,292
Retirement benefit costs — Mandatory BRIREFIK A — 38§ 1%
Provident Fund Scheme NIEEETE 37 49
5,469 6,341

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B SRR M R (@)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 HZE_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HItFE

38. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38. €@ I EZ2AFEER

INSTRUMENTS
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TERFAARAERE SR T A Z2AFER
of the Group’s financial instruments: =B
Assets measured at fair value: BEAVTEFECEE:
2020 —EZEF
Fair value measurement using
2 {8 5t 8 56
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable Valuation
markets inputs inputs technique(s)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) and key input(s)
BX
RERME BEAATER FABE
ZHE WARE LN &
(% —#) (=& (B=) FHEENREZZESHAHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FER FExT
Financial assets at FVOCI - 25,835 — Based on discounted cash flows that
capture the present value of future
expected cash flows derived from
the underlying assets
BRAFEFAEMEE ERHEENBEENARENRES
KR & mEE RENRENERESRE
Financial assets at FVPL - 3,917 — Based on the account value of
the policy as provided by
the insurance company
BRAFEAABRY ERREAGRRHENRENIERF
TREE EBE

E-ERZERERAR ’l 8 ’l
—B-FEEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE_—ZE_-_ZFMA=1+HFE

38. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 3.t ITECZAFEEHK@®
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy THRIAPALAEF ST E Z AFEE
of the Group’s financial instruments: (Continued) 2EH (8
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued) BAFEAEZEE: (B
2019 —E— N F
Fair value measurement using
DA 8 3
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
inactive  observable unobservable Valuation
markets inputs inputs technique(s)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) and key input(s)

BEX
RERME BERAUEER THEER
ZHWE  BABUE B A BUR

(% —) (EZH (F=H) HEXMEEIEHARE

HK$’'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FET THETT FETT
Financial assets at FVOCI — 42,152 — Based on discounted cash flows that
capture the present value of future
expected cash flows derived from
the underlying assets
BRAFEFAREMEE ERHEREEENRRERES
W EmEE RENRENMRRERE
Financial assets at FVPL — 3,856 — Based on the account value of
the policy as provided by
the insurance company
BRAFEFABRRDN ERRREAFRENRENEKRP
During the year ended 30 April 2020, there were no transfers of fair N2 -_Z_ZEZFNWA=1tHILFE
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers N SRMEEZF—FHRE_FAF
into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets. The Group did not BifE 2B MmeE g JRmE A o
have any financial liabilities and financial assets measured at fair HE=4H R_ETE-_ZTFK_FT—N
value under Level 3 as at 30 April 2020 and 2019. FOMA=+H AEBITETMAIED

FEiE 2BEERSBREELR
E=HET -

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

ToPEMA= AR

For the year ended 30

April 2020

.%7 z=

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

30. AAFEEME A AW

(-}

RBERRARBDEIEMBRR 27

reporting period are set out below. FEF R o
Particulars
Place and date of of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital Equity interest held place of operation
BRTRE/
£ BRI/ RIS RA S aExZFE FiEsRE TEEBREELY
2020 2019
SE =t
Directly held
BEEREE
Tic Tac International Company Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"), US$2 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
1 July 2014
FEERERAT ERRAHE((RBELZEER)) 2XTT REBREER
ZZ-ME+A-H
POl Limited BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
EBRAHS e REBREER
ZE—tE+ZRZtNR
Indirectly held
BERE
City Great Limited Hong Kong, 25 January 2007 HK$1 100% 100% Wholesale of watches in Hong Kong
YN BE ZEErE-A-TIH BT REBUSRENRE
Fulham Corporation Limited Hong Kong, 28 May 2012 HK$1 100% 100%  Club membership holding in
Hong Kong
LEERAT A ZE-ZFRAZTNA BT REARERENEH
Jenus Top International Limited Hong Kong, 30 June 2004 HK$300,000 100% 100%  Provision of management services in
Hong Kong
HEERARAA FE —_TTOFEAAZTH 300,000%7T REBREERRS
Sun Step Asia Limited Hong Kong, 17 June 2006 HK$500,000 100% 100% Wholesale of watches in Hong Kong
BEDNERAF R ZEERERATLE 500,000% 7T REBUSHENR S
Tic Tac Time Company Limited Hong Kong, 28 July 1997 HK$3,000,000 100% 100% Retail of watches in Hong Kong
BEETERAT B5 -ANEECATTAR 30000087 REBUFRETE
Treasure Ascent International Limited Hong Kong, 22 October 2008 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of management services in
Hong Kong
HEEBARLA &4 TTN\FHAS-toA 5000007572 REZRUERRY
Prosper One Industrial Investment Limited BV, 29 December 2017 US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
EBRAHS e REBREER
“E—tFTZAZthAE
Prosper One Commerce Investment BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited
KBRIHS iE REBREER
“E—tFFT-AZTNE

E-BRZERARAT
“E-ZEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 HE-_ZT_ZTFMA=1+HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 0. XRNAFTENB AR
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 15 (@)
Particulars
Place and date of of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital Equity interest held place of operation
BRITRE/
A% BB/ RIBERAS aMERZFE Fifs R TEEBREERY
2020 2019
—Z-ZF ZZ-NF
Indirectly held
BEsE
Prosper One Eco-Technology Limited Hong Kong, 23 February 2017 HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
ERRMRERAR FE “T—tF-A-T=H 10,000%7C REBREER
Prosper One Fertilizer Limited Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
E-REERAR FE —T-tFT-AZTNA 1 REBREER
Prosper One Resources Commerce Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited
E-HRE5BRAA BE ZT—tFT-A=TNH BT REBREER
Prosper One Well Rich Commerce Limited  Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HKS1 100% 100% Inactive
E-ERESERAR FE _T-tFT-AZTNA BT LR3-S
LEE-RRRRERAA PRG, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Provision of consulting services
29 January 2018
HEAREARE 50,000,000%7¢ REEARS
ZE-\¥-RAZTNA
WRE-EERRBR AR PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Trading of fertiisers and other related
29 January 2018 products in PRC
HEAREARA 50,000,000%7C RABEEREHREMIEEER
—F-\¥-A-tAR
LWRE— (Lt IRHARAR PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Trading of fertiisers and other related
29 January 2018 products in PRC
HEAREARE 50,000,0007%7C RABEEREH R EMIERER
ZZ-A\F—-AZTNhH
LRE-ERESERAR PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Trading of fertiisers and other related
29 January 2018 products in PRC
HEAREAERA 50,000,0007%7C RABEEEH REMIERER
—T-A\F-A=ThH
EfE 2B SERATF PRC, limited fiability HK$50,000,000 N/A 100% Inactive and deregistered during the
([EFE—])" 29 January 2018 year
HEAREARA 50,000,000%7C TER EREERNERREER
ZZ-\F-AZTNhH
" JEF9& —completed the deregistration on 19 June 2019. " R-Z—A&E~A+ARH BES—=
BCHIEE B AL o

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

40.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at
30 April 2020 and 2019 or at any time during both years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@)

On 17 July 2020, Fulham and Treasure Ascent, both indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (collectively, the
“Subsidiaries”) had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Lam who is the director of both the
Subsidiaries, pursuant to which the Subsidiaries had agreed
to dispose of and Mr. Lam had agreed to acquire two motor
vehicles at an aggregate consideration of HK$4,700,000. The
management estimated that there would be a gain of
approximately HK$857,000 (before any tax and expenses) on
the disposal for the year ending 30 April 2021.

As a result of the outbreak of COVID-19, various countries
have taken numerous measures including travel and
transportation restrictions to prevent the spread of the
epidemic. Such measures including the quarantine measures
imposed by the Hong Kong government have had an impact
on the Group’s operations. As the situation remains fluid, the
Directors considered that the financial effects of COVID-19 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements could not be
reasonably estimated as at the date of these consolidated
financial statements being authorised for issue. Given the
unpredictable nature and rapid development relating to
COVID-19, the Group’s operating environment would be
increasingly challenging when the epidemic continues. The
Directors will continue to monitor and assess the impact of
the outbreak of the epidemic on the Group’s operation and
financial performance in this regard.

BE_T_TFMA=THIFE

V. ARNFETEMBLAANF

15 (@)

ARBIEERAE  EXRIWRZARQF
MBARFTEZEAEE 2 EERE
ElBE - ARG ESERE #5H
B AR 2 FIBHERFBARIT
KB

MEMNBARN - ZE-_TZFL T —

NFEWA =+ B R EFEAEM
BEAEAREEZEHES -

40. HEMREE

@ RZZEZZTF+LA++tH'LE
EREeBWAARARHEERZE
WEBAR SiBAIZENE A
Bl EMEE(H A% MBS
RAMER)TLEE B &
- ZEWBRARERELEM
MEEERBEWRERESAE &
R 1B 54,700,000 70 - E B EH
o hEgAEE S -_—4FN0
A=+ 81t F & E 4 4857,000
BITH R CRINBRERRE) -

(b) HFCOVID-1987/E 3 - L E
TZEER BREKTMERR
- A EERBERNELE - BIES
7 RIS B e HY BB B FE M FE A It
FHEBEAEENEEER T
Z-HRBEMIABE EFR
% COVID-19¥ KN & B 45 & B 7
BRENFERZERAVBRE
BT AEASE G &
A COVID-19 2 48 5% T8 8 14 K 1R &R
EXE - MREEZERE BIAEE
MEERBBEUERNE -EF2
B EE T M HEIBEEYA
SECEERVBRANTE -

E-BRERERAT
—B-BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RS R M R (@)

o For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HZE_-Z

BEMA=TEIFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

M. ARTHBERRR KR FEE

ARBRBERRZHBARARAKRE

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes: e
30/4/2020 30/4/2019
—EZEHF —E-hF
A=+H mA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Interest in subsidiaries RB ARz 24,040 82,175
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MEE 14 29
Rental deposits HEZRS - 44
24,054 82,248
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 3,736 3,453
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EmERFIE 274 219
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 147 218
4,157 3,890
Total assets 8EE 28,211 86,138
Capital and reserves BERKRFE
Share capital B& 2 8,000 8,000
Reserves 1 489 68,207
Total equity [ Rt 8,489 76,207
Current liabilities mEBaE
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 —
Accruals and other payables FEt B A K& E 4 FE R 19,701 9,931
Total liabilities AfEHERE 19,722 9,931
Total equity and liabilities BE=kAE 28,211 86,138

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR 6 B H% Rk BT & ()

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #HE-_E-—ZFMA=1+HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION M ARAFHERRRREE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves EKATz#ESS
Share Capital Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total

BROHEE BEARE HtREE RiER EE
HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TR TET TET TET TER

Balance at 1 May 2018 RZE-N\FHA—-HZ
g 118,368 66,887 (5,688) (81,265) 98,302

Total comprehensive expense % [ B X & 48

Loss for the year FAEE - - - (35,783) (35,783
Reversal of deemed contribution i &2 5118 B B R E
upon early repayment by EE D R e B

subsidiaries and capitalisation A & & A1k 18
of the amounts due from
subsidiaries — — 5,688 — 5,688

Balance at 30 April 2019and R -ZT—AFMWA=1+H
1 May 2019 k—_Z-NAFHA—H
2R 118,368 66,887 — (117,048) 68,207

Total comprehensive expense 2 TH B 3z 4 58
Loss for the year FAEBE — - - 67,718)  (67,718)

Balance at 30 April 2020 R-B-EFEWMA=1+H
2 118,368 66,887 - (184,766) 489

E-BBRERERAF ’l 87
—ETEER



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HEFEHEEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out below:

AEEBERENIFEOEENRAE
RREZHERFIMT

188

RESULTS E
Year ended 30 April
BENA=THLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RF ZE—+H& ZE-N\§ TN ZB-EE
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FTHEL AL TEL FHEL TER
Revenue & 321,322 283,211 315,501 202,349
Cost of sales HEKAR (006,434)  (192,893)  (211,409) (112,744
Gross profit E 114,888 90,318 104,092 89,605
Other (expenses) incomes E ot (B 52) A (489) 9 53 1,913
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEHRA (105,411) (102,817 (92,349) (80,515)
Administrative expenses TRRAX (20,479) (15,627) (26,902) (32,508)
Other expense HiR % - - - (1,000)
Operating loss REER (11,491) (28,117) (15,106) (22,505)
Finance costs BERA (667) (441) (572) (128)
Loss before income tax BAEHAESR (12,158) (28,558) (15,678) (22,633)
Income tax (expense) credit R (A EE (491) 867 (4,570) (4,260)
Loss for the year FEER (12,649) (27,691) (20,248) (26,893)
Other comprehensive expense Hi2AEX - - (17) (183)
Total comprehensive expense FEZEMIAR
for the year (12,649) (27,691) (20,265) (27,046)
Total comprehensive expense RTATEGEEE
for the year attributable to: PHEXAHE:
Owners of the Company KABEBA (12,649) (27,691) (20,265) (27,046)
Non-controlling interests R R — — _ _
(12,649) (27,691) (20,265) (27,046)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAaE
For the year ended 30 April
BENWA=THLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE—R"F 2+t ZE-N\F ZT-NE ZB-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHEL TEL TEL FTET TER
Total assets BERE 203,025 172,096 255,313 235,015
Total liabilities BwEE (44,422) (@1184)  (144666)  (149,227)
Total equity HER 158,603 130,912 110,647 85,788

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2020
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